SFG1663 REV

THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA

PRIME MINISTER'S OFFICE



Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT) Investment Project

FINAL

To the SAGCOT Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF)

UPDATED VULNERABLE GROUPS PLANNING FRAMEWORK (VGPF)

21st July 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF	TABLES AND FIGURES	3
LIST OF	ACRONYMS	4
EXECUT	IVE SUMMARY	5
1. INT	RODUCTION	7
1.1	BACKGROUND	7
1.2	THE NEED FOR VULNERABLE GROUPS PLANNING FRAMEWORK (VGPF)	8
2. APP	LICATION OF THE CONCEPT OF VULNERABLE GROUPS (VGS)	9
2.1	CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA	9
2.2	VULNERABLE GROUPS IN THE SAGCOT PROJECT AREA	9
2.3	DESCRIPTION OF THE VULNERABLE GROUPS	13
3. PUB	BLIC CONSULTATIONS	15
3.1	OBJECTIVES OF THE CONSULTATIONS	15
3.2	METHODOLOGY FOR PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS	15
3.2.1		
3.2.2	5 5 1 1	
3.2.3 3.2.4		
3.3	Key Findings from Public Consultations	
3.3.1	Income Generating Activities done by VGs Relevant to SAGCOT	17
3.3.2		
Lead	lership challenges in lower levels especially to do with land administration e.g.	18
4. GUI	DELINES FOR THE PREPARATION OF VULNERABLE GROUPS PLANS	20
4.1	PROJECT DESCRIPTION - THE SAGCOT PROGRAM	20
4.2	WORLD BANK SUPPORT TO THE SAGCOT PROGRAM – 'THE PROJECT'	20
4.3	ANTICIPATED SUB-PROJECT TYPES	21
4.4	POTENTIAL EFFECTS OF THE PROJECT ON THE VGS AND POSSIBLE MITIGATION MEASURES	22
4.5	PLAN FOR SOCIAL ASSESSMENT (SA)	30
4.6	INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS	31
4.7	PREPARING AND IMPLEMENTING A VULNERABLE GROUPS PLAN (VGP)	32
4.8	MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS	33
4.9	DISCLOSURE ARRANGEMENTS FOR $VGP(s)$ to be prepared drawing on the Social Assessment	NT 34
4.10	BUDGET	34
REFERE	NCES	36
ANNEXE	CS	
ANNEX	1: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN BAGAMOYO AND LINDI DISTRICTS	37
ANNEX	2: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN BAHI DISTRICT	39
ANNEX	3: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN IRINGA DISTRICT	40

ANNEX 4: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN KILOMBERO DISTRICT	42
ANNEX 5: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN MAKETE DISTRICT	44
ANNEX 6: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN MBARALI DISTRICT	45
ANNEX 7: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN MPANDA DISTRICT	46
ANNEX 8: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN SONGEA DISTRICT	47
Annex 9: Stakeholders Consulted in Singida District	48
ANNEX 10: STAKEHOLDERS CONSULTED IN SUMBAWANGA DISTRICT	49
ANNEX 11: PARTICIPANTS OF CONSULTATIVE STAKEHOLDERS MEETING IN DAR ES SALAAM	51
ANNEX 12: CONSULTATIVE STAKEHOLDERS MEETING PROGRAM	56
ANNEX 13: CONSULTATIVE STAKEHOLDERS MEETING PHOTO GALLERY	57
ANNEX 14: INCOME GENERATING ACTIVITIES DONE BY VGS	58
ANNEX 15: VULNERABLE GROUPS IMPACT SCREENING CHECKLIST	59
ANNEX 16: NATIONAL POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE SAGCOT INVESTMENT PROJECT	60

LIST OF TABLES AND FIGURES

Table 1: Coverage of Public Consultations	. 15
Table 2: Number of VGs Consulted	. 16
Table 3: Key Issues and their Responses for VGs in the SAGCOT Area	. 18
Table 4: Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures of Possible SAGCOT investment interventions (to be developed on the basis of SA findings)	28
Table 5: A Step by Step Process for the Fund Manager and the Matching Grant Recipient for Inclusion of VG	

Figure 1: Tanzanian Tribes Ancestral Locations before Independence in 1961.. Error! Bookmark not defined.

LIST OF ACRONYMS

СВО	Community Based Organisation
CSOs	Civil Society Organisations
DFID	Department for International Development
DP	Development Partners
VGP	Vulnerable Groups Plan
VGPF	Vulnerable Groups Planning Framework
LGA	Local Government Authority
NGO	Non-Governmental Organisation
NSC	National Steering Committee
OP	Operational Policy
PCU	Project Coordination Unit
PDO	Project Development Objective
PME	Participatory Monitoring and Evaluation
RS	Regional Secretariat
RSA	Rapid Social Assessment
SAGCOT	Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania
SIA	Social Impact Assessment
UN	United Nations
URT	United Republic of Tanzania
VGs	Vulnerable Groups

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The SAGCOT Program is a public private partnership launched at the World Economic Forum on Africa in May 2010 in Dar es Salaam, Tanzania, and in Davos, Switzerland in January 2011, as a means to implement the country's transformational agriculture vision, the Kilimo Kwanza. As outlined in the SAGCOT Investment Blueprint, the Government of Tanzania (GoT) seeks to attract US\$2.1 billion of new agribusiness investment over the next 20 years to bring at least 350,000 additional hectares into commercial production incorporating Tanzanian smallholders into internationally competitive supply chains. The SAGCOT Program aims to create at least 420,000 new jobs and lift more than 2 million people out of poverty.

The World Bank-supported SAGCOT Investment Project will not support the entire SAGCOT Program but a distinct and critical element of the larger Program. The Project aims particularly to support innovative strategies for generating agricultural growth and poverty alleviation through building successful partnerships between smallholder communities and agribusiness investors. The Project is intended to contribute to "catalyzing" the integration of smallholders into competitive agribusiness value chains to help create the opportunity for technology acquisition, productivity improvement and income growth of farmers. It has three components:

Component 1: Strengthening of SAGCOT Support Institutions (total USD14.33 million, IDA USD5.95 million). The component will support two institutions: (a) SAGCOT Centre (total USD11.83 million, IDA USD3.45 million); and (b) Tanzania Investment Centre (total USD2.5 million, IDA USD2.5 million)

Component 2: Strengthening Smallholder Business Linkages (total USD85.76 million, IDA USD55.65 million). This component will comprise two sub-components: (a) Fund Management (total USD7.79 million, IDA USD7.79 million); and (b) Matching Grants (total USD77.98 million, IDA USD47.86 million).

Component 3: Project Management and Monitoring and Evaluation (total USD8.41 million, (of which USD3.80 million have been provided as a Project Preparation Advance) IDA USD8.41 million).

The Matching Grants proposed under Component 2 are the Project-supported activity that is of most relevance to the ESMF and this Annex. Matching Grants of USD 250,000 up to USD 1.5 million with a matching contribution of 30 percent (national businesses) and 40 percent (international business operators) will be awarded to existing agribusiness companies with undisputed land rights following a defined process of application, evaluation and competitive selection. The grants can be used for capital and operational costs directly related to expanding smallholder participation in competitive agricultural supply chains.

There are various Vulnerable Groups (VGs) in the SAGCOT area. Determination of which groups in Tanzania are recognized as vulnerable is being done on a project by project basis, and is done according to the following criteria: those that may be below the food poverty line and lack access to basic social services. – (including those that are geographically isolated),

and are not integrated with society at large and its institutions due to physical or social factors. 1

Based on the social assessment undertaken for this report there are indeed some groups in the project area, including women-headed households, the elderly, disabled, youth, children, refugees, persons with HIV/AIDs, and any disadvantaged communities who fit the criteria to be considered as Vulnerable Groups (VGs).

The SAGCOT Investment Project will generate potential benefits to VGs living in the subproject areas under the Matching Grants scheme; however, it may also lead to some adverse impacts on these groups. This Vulnerable Groups Planning Framework (VGPF) has been prepared as an annex to the Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF) to examine any impacts on these groups and ensure they are informed about and participate in sub-projects that may affect them or areas in which they are present. The VGPF includes measures to ensure that for any proposed sub-project: such groups have been involved in a process of free, prior and informed consultation leading to broad community support for the sub-project; any adverse impacts on such groups are mitigated; the groups obtain socially appropriate benefits from the sub-project; there is a process for grievance redress; and, the project includes monitoring and evaluation to assess the project's impacts on and benefits for vulnerable groups. Where necessary, a Vulnerable Group Plan (VGP) will be prepared for each sub-project that will include actions to ensure such groups are supported by and actively participate in the sub-project.

¹ It is important that Vulnerable Groups benefit from the project in socially appropriate ways, based on free, prior and informed consultations. This could include measures to deliver services in a manner that is easily understood by local populations, or to tailor benefits to the occupations of Vulnerable Groups. This should also include socially appropriate factors, such as the inherited ideas, beliefs, values, and knowledge, which constitute the shared bases of social action. It is important to clarify, however, that the provision of socially appropriate benefits from the project does not supersede broader Government programs and policies aimed at social development, such as those that promote universal access to health and education services, or promote gender inclusion.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

The Government of Tanzania (GoT) has received a credit from the International Development Association (IDA) of the World Bank towards implementation of a Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT) Investment Project. The Project Development Objective (PDO) is to increase the adoption of new technologies and improved market access by smallholder farmers through expanding and creating partnerships between smallholder farmers and agribusinesses in the Southern Corridor of Tanzania. As an international public private partnership, SAGCOT Program is a means to implement Tanzania's transformational agriculture vision, the Kilimo Kwanza. Its mandate is to mobilize private sector agribusiness investments, and, linked closely with public sector commitments, to achieve rapid and sustainable agriculture growth in southern corridor of Tanzania's Southern Corridor as a cohesive, modern commercial agricultural area. The outcomes will be simultaneously to foster growth in profitable, environmentally and socially responsible agriculture as well as generating a new force for rural development and poverty reduction.

The project supports GoT's "Big Results Now!" (BRN) initiative launched in 2013, which identifies solutions to key development bottlenecks, develops detailed implementation plans to implement these solutions, and pursues a new delivery system to ensure effective execution and monitoring. Phase 1 of BRN consisted of an intense planning process covering Key Results Areas: Agriculture, Education, Energy, Water, Transport, Investment Climate and Resource Mobilization.

The Government commonly refers to the SAGCOT Program as 'business unusual'. Rather than working through its own Ministries, the Government chose to create two new private sector institutions to lead the SAGCOT Program implementation. The SAGCOT Centre is a private company limited by guarantee and the SAGCOT Catalytic Fund is an independent Trust. Each has its own governing board. The Prime Minister's Office (PMO) leads the government team in partnering with the new institutions. The SAGCOT Program is now attracting funding from multiple development partners, including United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), United States Agency for International Development (USAID), and Department for International Development (DFID).

The Project will be implemented over a period of 5 years. The expected effectiveness date is 1^{st} July, 2016 while the expected closing date is 31^{st} October 2021.

The government is committed to support environmentally and socially sustainable solutions in the SAGCOT area. The SAGCOT Blueprint highlights environmental and social risks to implementation. For example, rapid growth of agricultural investment will place pressures on land and water resources, including areas adjacent to national reserves and parks. The government has prepared a SAGCOT *Greenprint*², drafted to identify more environmentally sustainable investment opportunities. This highlights a wide range of environmentally including social friendly practices that might be employed in the context of agribusiness partnerships under the SAGCOT Program, including such options as conservation farming, rainwater harvesting, off grid solar power and biogas energy production. The Government is committed to building its capacity, and those involved in the SAGCOT program, to meeting this challenge.

In view of the above, the GoT has agreed with the World Bank that it shall ensure that the SAGCOT Investment Project is carried out in accordance with the provisions set out in the Strategic Regional Environmental and Social Assessment (SRESA); the Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF); the Resettlement Policy Framework (RPF); and an Integrated Pest Management Plan (IPMP). In line with the applicable policies and legislations of the World Bank and the GoT, these safeguard instruments were prepared and approved in the period between 2012 and 2015.

1.2 The Need for Vulnerable Groups Planning Framework (VGPF)

Based on the social assessments undertaken for the preparation of the SRESA, ESMF and RPF, it was noted that there are various Vulnerable Groups (VGs) in the SAGCOT area. These include vulnerable pastoralists and farmers, women-headed households, the elderly, disabled, youth, children, refugees, persons with HIV/AIDs, and disadvantaged communities.

Following the above identification of the VGs, the GoT and World Bank agreed that it was necessary to prepare a VGPF specifically to assist to identify measures to include them in the implementation of the SAGCOT Investment Project. The first version of the VGPF was completed in December 2015 based on the findings of the ESMF, RPF and SRESA. This document is an updated version of the VGPF based on detailed public consultations done in May and June 2016 (see details in Section 3).

² A Vision for Agriculture Green Growth in the SAGCOT Program: The *Greenprint*. April 2013.

2. APPLICATION OF THE CONCEPT OF VULNERABLE GROUPS (VGs)

2.1 Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania

The Constitution of United Republic of Tanzania, 1977 emphasizes the importance of not singling out individuals, tribes or ethnic groups.

The following Articles emphasize the principle of national unity:

Article 8(2): The structure of the Government of the United Republic and the Revolutionary Government of Zanzibar or any of their organs, and the discharge of their functions shall be so effected as to take into account the unity of the United Republic and the need to promote national unity and preserve national dignity.

Article 9: The object of this Constitution is to facilitate the building of the United Republic as a nation of equal and free individuals enjoying freedom, justice, fraternity and concord, through the pursuit of the policy of Socialism and Self Reliance which emphasizes the application of socialist principles while taking into account the conditions prevailing in the United Republic. Therefore, the state authority and all its agencies are obliged to direct their policies and programmes towards ensuring (g) that the Government and all its agencies accord equal opportunities to all citizens, men and women alike without regard to their colour, tribe, religion, or station in life...

Article 29: (1) Every person in the United Republic has the right to enjoy fundamental human rights and to enjoy the benefits accruing from the fulfillment by every person of this duty to society, as stipulated under Articles 12 to 28 of this Part of this Chapter of the Constitution.

(2) Every person in the United Republic has the right to equal protection under the laws of the United Republic.

(3) A citizen of the United Republic shall not have a right, status or special position on the basis of his lineage, tradition or descent.

(4) It is hereby prohibited for any law to confer any right, status, or special position upon any citizen of the United Republic on the basis of lineage, tradition or descent.

(5) In order that all persons may benefit from the rights and freedoms guaranteed by this Constitution, every person has the duty to so conduct himself and his affairs in the manner that does not infringe upon the rights and freedoms of others or the public interest.

Given the above principles in the Tanzanian Constitution, Vulnerable Groups in the SAGCOT project area are identified as women-headed households, the elderly, disabled, youth, children, refugees, persons with HIV/AIDs and any disadvantaged communities.

2.2 Vulnerable Groups in the SAGCOT Project Area

The SRESA for the SAGCOT Investment Project notes that approximately 95% of the 2.1 million ha under crop production in the southern corridor is farmed by smallholders using traditional rain-fed methods, primarily subsistence farming; they also collect fuelwood. This limits the amount that is possible for a household to cultivate, and the yield that can be achieved. In general, yields are low, with grain and pulse yields averaging less than 1.5 t/ha. Despite its huge potential, there is currently very limited large scale irrigated farming in the

southern corridor. Of the 7.5 million ha of arable land, less than 2 percent is irrigated (mainly public irrigation schemes for smallholder rice production).

People's livelihood strategies, and how they respond to difficulties, are closely linked to their social cohesion and the physical and institutional environment. In rural areas livelihoods are primarily based on the production of food and cash crops, and livestock are also important. Different communities have different measures of what constitutes poor rains and what constitutes a drought, and they have different responses to these hazards. Issues such as isolation from roads and markets, proximity to large cities, irrigated plantations, or mining operations that offer substantial obstacles and opportunities to development, including social values and government policy also influence livelihoods.

The ESMF and SRESA initially identified a number of VGs in the project area.

Kilombero Valley: The Kilombero District is 14,918 sq Kms, and lies along the Kilombero Valley – harbouring one of Africa's largest wetlands and prime agricultural location in the Rufiji Basin, stretching from the Selous Game Reserve and extending north to Udzungwa Mountains. Part of the valley has been designated as a Ramsar site, home of a diverse wetland habitat as well as important agricultural terrain and lush fertile land that has increasingly attracted a high number of new arrivals and population growth, putting wildlife, agriculturalists, pastoralists and livestock population competing for resources.

The Kilombero District is comprised of five Divisions – Kidatu, Mang'ula, Ifakara, Mngeta and Mlimba; with Ifakara as the main town and home to district administration offices. The administrative divisions are further divided into 23 Wards and 94 Villages. The last census taken by the Kilombero district in 2002 reflects a total population count of 321,611, projected to grow to 528,851 by 2015, and number of cattle presently at 60,000. However, authorities agree that actual numbers falling outside registered village demarcations could be well above that.

There are vulnerable groups whose access to land could be compromised for a number of reasons, including low education and lack of representation. They use traditional, labour intensive farming techniques, and almost all farms are rain fed with little or no mechanization. This limits the amount of land that it is possible for a household to cultivate, and the yield that can be achieved. However, examples from the Kilombero Valley show that large farmers working together with small holder farmers have led to increased yields for the latter of above 6 t/ha by using simple techniques that are easy to replicate. Similarly, livestock numbers have increased, though there has been no broad-based increase in productivity. Practices such as shifting cultivation and the use of seasonal fire are widely practiced.

Smallholder farmers' access to and use of inputs such as improved seeds and fertilizer is low (especially for women), and there are few agro-processing facilities in rural areas. As a result production is low, post-harvest losses are high and people are unable to add value to their produce. Due to poor infrastructure, and limited access to transport, many farmers in rural areas are restricted in their access to markets. Much of their produce is bought by middle-men who offer a low price, knowing that they can transport it to larger urban markets and processors where prices are higher.

Some areas in the SAGCOT corridor often provide critical firewood and grazing resources, or may be earmarked for cultivation at a later date when the situation changes. It is often difficult for smallholder poor farmers to access credit needed to improve and expand cultivation since customary rights of occupancy provide limited security. In addition the value of land in Tanzania is very low compared to neighbouring countries, especially for rural land.

Vulnerable farmers face other challenges as well. The ESMF notes that the Tanzania Demographic and Health Study (TDHS) reported that nearly 50% of rural populations only eat two meals per day. A 2009/10 comprehensive food security and vulnerability analysis by the WFP indicated that between 80% and 90% of Tanzanian households had experienced income and/or food loss during droughts. Droughts are amongst shocks most often reported by households in rural Tanzania: between 85% and 100% of regions in the corridor had experienced a drought in the last year and at least one drought in the last 5 years. Morogoro and Mbeya have experienced more droughts than other regions in the corridor, while Ruvuma is least vulnerable to droughts.

Social practices vary greatly between the many groups in Tanzania, but share some common traits: in crop-farming communities in general, women have primary responsibility for (i) domestic work including food preparation, fetching water, finding and fetching fuel wood, and child care, (ii) subsistence agriculture, especially most of the weeding, harvesting, processing and storage activities relating to food crop production. Men and women participate fairly equally in site clearance, land preparation, sowing and planting, but overall women spend more hours per day than men in both productive and reproductive activities³.

Pastoralism has traditionally not been practiced in the Kilombero valley, and the first to practice this activity arrived in the valley in the 1970s. The in-migration of livestock herders has been most noticeable since 2006 with an influx of thousands of cattle and other livestock. It is reported that the pastoralists come from as far away as the Shinyanga, Arusha and Manyara regions. They have been drawn to Kilombero because of: (i) the lush habitat (ii) rich fertile lands and (iii) confluence of abundant waterways in the region. Due to the fertility of land in Kilombero, the pastoralists engage in limited cultivation, in particular maize and rice, as supplemental livelihood strategies and solely for household consumption. They have access to local markets where they sell milk, auction or trade cattle, buy and sell medicine for their livestock, or source other goods like wraps, beads, or low cost household goods. A total of 557 pastoralist households are currently registered in the district, with a greater but unknown number of unregistered households.

In most pastoral societies gender roles are strongly marked. Women are typically responsible for milking and dairy processing; they may or may not sell the milk, and they usually have control over the proceeds in order to feed the family. Men are responsible for herding and selling meat animals. In systems in which herds are split, women usually stay at fixed homesteads while men go away with the animals. Part of the herd (often goats) is considered for 'home consumption' and often stays with the women. The more valuable cattle remain with the men.

³ FAO. 1997. Gender and Participation an Agricultural Development Planning. Lessons from Tanzania. Dar es Salaam and Rome, November 1997.

Some disadvantaged communities engage in farming and herding, and, in some cases, certain communities have opted for isolation. This has led to a lack of representation, making it more difficult for communities and the government to assess livestock and gather information on the challenges facing this group. Some groups have kept to their traditional ways (they are highly patrilineal), rarely seeking outside employment or engaging in intergroup marriage. They have in place clear community-based social (governance) structures for male elders, women, and for youth. The wealth of such groups is normally measured by the number of livestock; cattle, goats, sheep and chicken.

Many agro-pastoralists have been more successful in becoming integrated into the communities in which they settle. For example, agro-pastoralists have been able to participate in decision making processes. They were renting land, growing crops and even had positions in community governance structures and community based organizations (CBOs). The pastoralists, on the other hand, have tended to be more isolated from communities and decision making. This is due in part to a less sedentary lifestyle.

Land conflicts in general result in lengthy legal processes, and according to the Legal and Human Rights Centre around 75% of all their legal cases are related to land. Following a government directive, an ongoing process is being carried out at a district level to establish the carrying capacity of land in the valley, and to remove livestock where numbers exceed this capacity. Where carrying capacity is exceeded, registered pastoralists are being advised to reduce the number of their cattle and contain their livestock within allocated areas.

Bagamoyo: Bagamoyo is 9,842 sq kms, one of six districts of the Coastal Region, a mere one hour drive from Dar es Salaam, connecting it to ample and important commercial markets. It has 6 Divisions – 16 Wards, 82 Villages, 30 of which have land use plans, with only half of those allocated to mixed use, accommodating livestock. However, the authorities note, none of the mixed use plans have taken into consideration the influx of pastoralists in the last few years, who have largely arrived without permit, and remain unregistered for fear of expulsion. Bagamoyo District is in the proximity of three of the largest rivers in Tanzania which contribute to rich agricultural lands, cultivating rice, maize, cotton, pulses and vegetables; furthermore, supplying 90% of the water in Dar es Salaam. Even though 75% of the income of this region is based on agriculture, livestock related products are also an important source of economic contribution.

According to the 2005 census, Bagamoyo had a population of 248,328, with only a modest increase of 7.8% from 2002. Tanzanian Official Bureau of Statistics published report also stresses the fact that even though the major GDP income of the Coastal region is derived from agriculture, not all of the arable land is being used. The report notes that, in Bagamoyo, out of 836,570 ha of arable land; only 6.7% (75,360) is under crop production, underlining the degree of focus on agricultural imperatives. The same report notes that even though livestock could be an important component of local economy, the yields are low due to lack of sufficient livestock infrastructure and poor animal husbandry, stressing the need for increased focus in this regard. It is reported that there are 62,760 cattle, 3,022 sheep and 10,028 goats on 170,000 Ha, or 22.4% of total regional grazing land. In short, the vulnerable groups in Bagamoyo have some more challenges to those in Kilombero, as there is less productive land available for cultivation than in the Valley.

Some of the vulnerable groups in Bagamoyo are somewhat reclusive. Many of them adhere to traditional customs and are patrilineal. As in Kilombero, they have access to local markets where they sell milk, auction or trade cattle, buy and sell medicine for their livestock, or source other goods. A sample of these disadvantaged communities were consulted both in the locations visited and with representation at the meeting in Dar es Salaam. Their concerns are included in Table 3.

2.3 Description of other Vulnerable Groups

As stated above, there are other Vulnerable Groups in the project area. Below are more detailed descriptions of them:

Women headed households: Approximately 20% of Tanzanian women ages 25-50 are either unmarried, divorced, separated or widowed. In 2007 23% of rural households were headed by women, the percentage is higher in urban areas (up to 30%). Women heads of households experience a greater work and time-burden and responsibility, often making them more vulnerable than families with both parents present. Decision-making is (largely) controlled by the women themselves, which often positively influences their choice to join meetings, associations etc.

Youth: The main vulnerability of girls is early marriage and pregnancies, which often cause school drop-out and limit future life opportunities. The median age of giving birth to a first child is 19 years; close to 20% of girls aged 15-19 have had a live birth or were pregnant with a first child (TDHS, 2010). The rate of unemployment (for a period of at least 12 months) for 20–24 year olds is on average 14 and 13% for men and women respectively.

Disabled: Approximately 2% of the total Tanzanian population is considered disabled (physically, visually, hearing, intellectually impaired; multiple impaired and albinos; according to 2002 Census definitions). Men are more likely to be disabled than women. Of the total disabled, 54.9% are males, 40.1% females.

Elderly: Elders who are primary caregivers for young children are more vulnerable to poverty and lack of food security (approx. 10% of the elderly (60+ years) in Tanzania, and 14% of elderly women). Tanzanian elderly women are at times accused of witchcraft. Incidents of physical violence against or murder of such accused elderly women have occurred in the southern corridor area.

HIV/AIDS and other chronic long-term diseases: Only roughly half of women and slightly fewer men in the southern corridor have comprehensive knowledge about AIDS. Some 60-70% of women and 50-60% of men in the southern corridor have knowledge on prevention of mother to child transmission of HIV. In terms of attitudes, acceptance is high in relation to willingness to take care of an HIV+ family member at home (90%+); however more than 50% of women would want to keep it a secret, versus approximately 40% of men.

Certain areas of the Kilombero Valley have been hard hit by HIV/AIDS. Mobility is one factor contributing to the increased risk of HIV infection. The concentration of male migrants isolated from their families, increases the demand for commercial sex. Kilombero attracts traders, migrant farmers, casual/seasonal labourers and truck drivers, all of whom are at a higher risk of HIV infection, and of contributing to its spread. Their comparative 'wealth'

enables them to pay for sex, and also makes them a target for transactional sex. Many of the seasonal casual labourers recruited to work in sugar cane plantations come from areas of Tanzania which have a higher HIV/AIDS rate than Kilombero, such as Mbeya and Iringa, which increases the likelihood that they are infected. The direction of infection is not only from mobile men to local women. It is difficult for women to negotiate safe sexual practices with their partners. Unprotected sex with multiple partners increases the risk of HIV infection in both directions. It has been found that among farm and plantation workers in Iringa and Morogoro HIV prevalence was about 30%, compared to the general population which had an average of 7%. Given the importance of the agricultural sector in general and the heavy reliance of the rural poor on agricultural-related livelihoods in particular, the potential impacts of HIV/AIDS on agricultural production and the labour force are of great concern.

Children: Child labour in rural areas is higher than in urban areas. For children aged 5-17 years, 36.1% of boys and 28.2% of girls provide child labour. A majority (between 50 - 60%) of children in the corridor live with their parents; up to 22% live with their mother only, even when father is often still alive (TDHS 2010); single (women) headed households are often more vulnerable to poverty than households where both parents are present.

Refugees: In 2007 the Tanzanian government accepted 162,000 Burundian refugees to become naturalized Tanzanians (referred to as "Newly - Naturalized Tanzanians" (NNTs)). In 2010, the National Strategy for Community Integration Programme was announced, spelling out the modalities for the relocation and integration of the NNTs to 16 selected regions and 52 districts around the regions. The relocation exercise was halted in August 2011. One reason for the suspension given by the GoT was that insufficient consultation had taken place within government, especially with Regional and District authorities in the proposed receiving regions. This, according to media sources, had led to unrest and security issues in the relocation areas. At this point it is not clear if refugee families may be relocated (and allocated land) within the SAGCOT area. The decision to relocate all NNTs and close the former refugee settlements is still being reviewed and other scenarios are being considered such as the local integration of the NNTs in their current place of residence. Relocation and local integration of the new citizens could lead to social conflict, and their numbers would need to be taken into account with regard to land availability.

Most of the above described VGs were consulted as presented in the succeeding Section 3 below.

3. PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.1 Objectives of the Consultations

Considering that the VGPF was prepared based on the social assessments undertaken for the preparation of the SRESA, ESMF and RPF, the main purpose of the consultations on the VGPF was to fulfil IDA conditions of public consultations on the safeguards instrument specifically the VGPF and where necessary use the results of the consultations to update the VGPF. The VGPF will guide the preparation of either site or subproject specific Vulnerable Groups Plans (VGPs) during the SAGCOT Investment Project implementation.

3.2 Methodology for Public Consultations

3.2.1 Coverage of the Consultations

All the regions in the SAGCOT Investment Project area as shown in the table below were simultaneously covered in representative locations. From each region, at least one district and one location were selected based on the following criteria:

- Agricultural potential i.e. including the number of existing commercial farming;
- Priority clusters for SAGCOT; and
- Presence of known vulnerable groups.

	Region and District	Field Visit Date
1.	Morogoro (Kilombero Valley)	25th – 31st May 2016
2.	Ruvuma (Songea Rural)	25th – 29th May 2016
3.	Lindi (Lindi Rural) and Pwani (Bagamoyo)	25th – 31st May 2016
4.	Iringa (Iringa Rural – Ihemi) and Njombe (Makete)	25th – 30th May 2016
5.	Katavi (Mpanda) and Rukwa (Sumbawanga Rural)	25th – 30th May 2016
6.	Singida	25th – 29th May 2016
7.	Dodoma (Bahi)	25th – 29th May 2016
8.	Mbeya (Mbarali)	25th – 29th May 2016

 Table 1: Coverage of Public Consultations

3.2.2 Identification of Vulnerable Groups (VGs)

Identification of VGs was done in the following manner:

- A list of registered VGs in each of the visited district was obtained from district office Community Development Department;
- From the list groups were selected according to their status as women-headed households, widows, the elderly, disabled, youth, children, refugees, persons with HIV/AIDs, and disadvantaged communities; and
- Active VGs with ongoing income generating activities.

The table below presents the number of VGs consulted in each of the covered districts. An average of 25 individuals representing different VGs was consulted in each district (see *Annex 1-11*). In Kilombero District/ Valley alone, 54 VGs representatives and other stakeholders were consulted (see annex 4).

	Region and District	Total Number of Known/ Registered VGs	Number of VGs Consulted
1.	Morogoro (Kilombero Valley)	41	14
2.	Ruvuma (Songea Rural)	32	4
3.	Lindi (Lindi Rural)	52	5
4.	Pwani (Bagamoyo)	291	4
5.	Iringa (Iringa Rural – Ihemi)	654	3
6.	Njombe (Makete)	610	5
7.	Katavi (Mpanda)	124	3
8.	Rukwa (Sumbawanga Rural)	127	10
9.	Singida (Singida Rural)	112	5
10.	Dodoma (Bahi)	Unknown	3
11.	Mbeya (Mbarali)	14	14
	Total	Not applicable	70

Table 2: Number of VGs Consulted

Source: Field Work, May 2016

3.2.3 Interviews with NGOs, CBOs and FBOs in the SAGCOT Area

Non Governmental Organizations (NGOs) and Community Based Organizations (CBOs) directly supporting VGs in the SAGCOT area were also consulted. Such organizations included World Vision in Singida; Bethlehem Centre in Kilombero; One Acre Fund in Iringa; BAK.AIDS in Lindi, Community, Economic, Empowerment and legal Support (CEELS) in Sumbawanga, etc. The NGOs have good lessons that may be picked up by SAGCOT during project implementation as well as reaching out for partnership with them when and where required.

3.2.4 Consultative Stakeholders Meeting in Dar es Salaam

A highly interactive stakeholder's meeting was conducted in Dar es Salaam on 2nd June 2016 with an objective of bringing together all key national and lower levels representative stakeholders to seek their feedback on the VGPF in line with objectives of the SAGCOT Investment Project.

About 100 participants attended the meeting. List of the participants is included in Annex 11.

The participants of the meeting included the following:

- (i). Representatives of the consulted VGs in their respective districts;
- (ii). Relevant District Officials from SAGCOT area;

- (iii). Invited representatives from NGOs and CBOs working in the SAGCOT area and those based in Dar es Salaam but with field operations in the SAGCOT area;
- (iv). Representatives of Development Partners; and
- (v). Government officials from Prime Ministers' Office and SAGCOT Centre.

The meeting program (see Annex 12) included two main presentations as summarized below.

- (i). A brief presentation about SAGCOT Investment Program (what is SAGCOT; GoT objectives through SAGCOT; components of the SAGCOT Investment Project; SAGCOT's safeguards instruments – SRESA, ESMF, RPF and IPMP; the need for VGPF for SAGCOT; and objectives of the meeting); and
- (ii). A show case presentation by World Vision on the support provided to VGs in 20 villages in Mtinko Division, Singida District as a way to show progress made and the likely challenges that SAGCOT might find during project implementation including lessons learnt. World Vision, in collaboration with other stakeholders including local government authorities, offers technical (training) and financial support to VGs involved in farming and livestock keeping.

The most important part of the meeting was grouping of the participants in five groups to discuss what they found as the main impacts to and challenges facing VGs in the SAGCOT area and to suggest practical measures on how they may be addressed m, where applicable, through the SAGCOT Investment Project. It was observed that the participants in the consultations agreed that the program was impacting them positively, however were more concerned with how they will benefit from this program amidst the prevailing circumstances facing them.

Pictures showing different events during the stakeholders meeting are also included in Annex 13. A video documentary of the meeting is also available.

3.3 Key Findings from Public Consultations

3.3.1 Income Generating Activities done by VGs Relevant to SAGCOT

VGs in the SAGCOT project area engages in various income generating activities including farming of different crops (like paddy/rice groundnuts, sesame and cassava, sweet potatoes, pineapple processing, livestock keeping (poultry, cattle, goat, sheep, pig, etc), aquaculture, pottery, crafts and beekeeping etc (see Annex 14). These are activities are relevant to SAGCOT Investment Project in the sense that a working relationship could be developed between VGs and investors through SAGCOT.

3.3.2 Key Areas of Concern and the Responses Given

The table below presents key issues and responses to the issues facing VGs in the SAGCOT area as were raised during field surveys and consultative workshop in Dar es Salaam.

	Key area of concern	Description	Response/ Mitigation measures ⁴
1.	Land issues	Inadequate arable land needed for agriculture activities. Lack of legal occupancy of land Increasing land use conflicts e.g. between pastoralist and farmers, between local communities and investors. e. g. in Bagamoyo and Morogoro. Invasion of other land users to vulnerable groups areas. Leadership challenges in lower levels especially to do with land administration e.g. corruption cases that cause grabbing of the poor people's land.	 The government will facilitate land use planning in areas where SAGCOT investors will be investing. Mechanism for redressing land use conflicts will be put in place during project implementation. Mechanisms for ensuring good relationship between large scale investors and local communities (including VGs).
2.	Poor farming methods/ inadequate extension services	Dependence on rain fed agricultureInsufficient and poor farming implements.Presence of insects and diseases that affect agricultural production.Lack of crops storage facilitates for the perishable crops e.g. VegetablesPoor research in soils to determine the quality of soils.Reaching out to remote areas where some of the disadvantaged communitieslike the Hadzabe stayInadequate education on agri-businesses, and entrepreneurship skills on how toincrease value of products/crops.Lack of capital/ lack of enough capital, hence fail to compete in the market.Inadequate agricultural extension officers.Inadequate availability agricultural inputs.Absences of /poor agricultural infrastructures e.g. irrigation, roads, communication, market centre.Increase supply of poor quality farm inputs.Unfriendly or difficult loan conditions that VGs cannot afford.Climate change impacts i.e. periodic occurrence of natural disasters e.g. floods,	 Provision of agricultural extension services on agribusiness knowledge, VICOBA, conservation agriculture, entrepreneurships and livestock keeping. Need for improvement of market, storage and irrigation facilities and roads networks.

Table 3: Key Issues and their Responses for VGs in the SAGCOT Area

⁴ These responses and measures are based on the suggestions by participants. Much more practical and workable measures, in line with SAGCOT Investment Project, are given in Table 3 under Section 4.4 below.

	Key area of concern	Description	Response/ Mitigation measures⁴
		drought and its effects to yield.	
3.	Challenges in marketing agricultural crops	Inadequate markets and poor prices of crops Lack of technology that is required for packaging products in order to add value in market. Bureaucratic procedures in obtaining approvals/ certification from Tanzania Bureau of Standards (TBS). Local people lack of control over the crop measurement in terms of quantity. Farmers early selling of the crops. National Food Reserve Agency (NFRA) as main buyer of crops they always Delays in opening the market hence middlemen get chance to buy crops at low prices. Lack of flow of information about things like prices, demand for certain products, etc	 Need for contract farming which will ensure reliable market and price. NGOs already operating in the localities will take the lead in assisting VGs to obtain quality assurance certificate from TBS
4.	Other challenges	Poor involvement of the vulnerable groups in development projects. Increase in the spread HIV/AIDS. Misunderstanding among vulnerable groups .	 The government will take into consideration all the recommendations made by the stakeholders for safeguarding VGs interests . Investors through SAGCOT will have an educational awareness campaign programme during the operation phase to prevent the further spread of HIV/AIDS. Key stakeholders (including local communities, schools and health facilities, and CBOs) shall be appropriately involved in the programme

4. GUIDELINES FOR THE PREPARATION OF VULNERABLE GROUPS PLANS

4.1 **Project Description – The SAGCOT Program**

The strategy underlying the SAGCOT Program is a major innovation. The Program aims to mobilize private sector agribusiness investments, linked with public sector commitments to improve infrastructure and policy, to achieve rapid and sustainable agricultural growth in the smallholder sector. In line with the recommendations of the recent report on agri-business in Africa⁵, the SAGCOT Program is expected to simultaneously tackle the two major constraints to development of the sector – low on-farm productivity, and lack of market access – through business partnerships.

The SAGCOT programme is at an early stage of its organizational development, and the Government of Tanzania (GoT) has requested funding from the International Development Association (IDA), to support the establishment of some of the necessary institutions, institutional reorganization, capacity building and initial operation of a promotional funding mechanism (the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund). The lending instrument will be a Specific Investment Loan. The Bank has prepared a Project Concept Note (PCN) and is preparing a Project Appraisal Document (PAD) for the proposed Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT) Investment Project (P125728-IDA). The proposed Project Development Objective (PDO) is to accelerate the adoption of new technologies and improved market access by smallholder farmers through expanding and creating partnerships between smallholder farmers and agribusinesses in the Southern Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT).

4.2 World Bank Support to the SAGCOT Program – 'The Project'

The proposed World Bank support to the SAGCOT Program will be in the form of a five year Specific Investment Loan (SIL). The Project has three components:

Component 1: Strengthening of SAGCOT Support Institutions (total USD14.33 million, IDA USD5.95 million). This component will strengthen the capacity of SAGCOT Support Institutions in order to pursue their functions of information and data provision, support of investment planning and guidance, government/private sector intermediation, business enabling environment and investment promotion. The component will support two institutions:

(i) SAGCOT Centre (total USD11.83 million, IDA USD3.45 million): The Project will support the SAGCOT Centre, which was established as a public private partnership entity in 2011 to: (a) facilitate agri-business and partnership development; (b) ensure inclusive and sustainable investment and development; and (c) facilitate an improved enabling environment for investors. The Project will support the Centre by providing financing for staff and operational costs, studies and consulting services to be contracted by the Centre.

(ii) Tanzania Investment Centre (Government institution) (total USD2.5 million, IDA USD2.5 million): The Project will support the TIC which was established as a public sector entity in 1977 and designated as the first point of call and a "one-stop facilitation

⁵Growing Africa: Unlocking the Potential of Agribusiness, World Bank, January, 2013.

centre" for all potential investors coming into the country. The Project will support TIC to reform its processes with the aim to: (a) strengthen its capacity to attract high quality, responsible, inclusive and sustainable commercial investments (national and international private sector); (b) provide a competitive framework for tendering; and (c) monitor and evaluate investments. The Project will finance equipment, technical assistance and consultancies.

Component 2: Strengthening Smallholder Business Linkages (total USD85.76 million, IDA USD55.65 million): The objective of this component will be to link smallholder farmers to agricultural value chains. The component will: (a) expand the number of smallholders linked to agribusinesses in successful commercial partnerships; and (b) improve the benefits derived by smallholders and rural communities from these partnerships in the form of growth in agricultural productivity, income and employment. This component will comprise two subcomponents:

(i) Fund Management (total USD7.79 million, IDA USD7.79 million): Under this subcomponent the Project will support a management structure responsible for the implementation of the Catalytic Trust Fund (including Board, Secretariat and Fund Manager). Project support will include fees and salaries, goods and equipment, office operational costs, meetings and workshops, communications, and technical assistance.

(ii) Matching Grants (total USD77.98 million, IDA USD47.86 million): Matching Grants (MG) of USD250,000 up to USD1.5 million with a matching contribution of 30 percent (national businesses) and 40 percent (international business operators) will be awarded to agribusiness companies with undisputed land rights who apply in partnership with smallholder groups or associations, following a defined process of application, evaluation and competitive selection. The grants can be used for capital and operational costs directly related to expanding smallholder participation in competitive agricultural supply chains.

Component 3: Project Management and Monitoring and Evaluation (total USD8.41 million, (of which USD3.80 million have been provided as a Project Preparation Advance) IDA USD8.41 million): The component will establish project management and M&E systems and provide financing for salaries, office equipment, transportation and technical assistance services. Complementarities will particularly be sought with other IDA funded programs such as the Private Sector Competitiveness Project and the Agricultural Sector Development Program.

4.3 Anticipated Sub-Project Types

The SA for Vulnerable Groups which is the bases for the preparation of Vulnerable Groups Plans (VGPs) will apply to the SAGCOT SIL direct investments only. The Matching Grants (MG), which are envisaged to be funded by the IDA credit, will finance the efforts of established commercial agribusinesses to expand their commercial linkages with smallholder farmers by building or extending competitive supply chains. The Matching Grant, in effect, shares the risks of incorporating larger numbers of smallholders into sustainable commercial supply chains. The sub-project types include:

- support to the expansion of contract farming,
- the improvement of access to more productive production inputs (seed, fertilizer, planting material),

- the improvement of product assembly systems,
- the improvement of grades and standards and related support strategies,
- resolving small infrastructure bottlenecks in the supply chain such as:
 - fixing drainage problems blocking rural feeder roads,
 - \circ the electrification of a processing plant, or
 - the refurbishment of a warehouse facility required for product assembly.

4.4 Potential Effects of the Project on the VGs and Possible Mitigation Measures

Sub-projects funded through Matching Grants (MGs) will ensure that any negative impacts on VGs by the sub-project are mitigated and positive impacts are enhanced based on free, prior, and informed consultation. As sub-projects are identified through the MG scheme, a detailed social assessment (SA) will be undertaken by the investor for the preparation of a Vulnerable Groups Plan (VGP). Each sub-project will undertake free, prior and informed consultation leading to broad community support and the project will establish a grievance redress mechanism to handle any complaints from sub-project-affected people. Environmental and Social Management Plans for the sub-projects may include additional measures for VGs, as necessary.

Potential Adverse Impacts and Mitigation Measures

The potential social impacts of the project are expected to be small-scale and localized. The majority (75%) of IDA funding supports the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund. While the specific investments are unknown at the present time, activities eligible for Matching Grants Fund (MFG) financing are expected to include investments such as extension support, the provision of agricultural inputs, the provision of new technologies (such as new seed or plant or animal varieties), improved grades and standards, and improved commodity assembly systems. There may also be investments in small-scale infrastructure, such as rural road upgrading or small warehouses to ease bottlenecks in the supply chain. The ESMF includes measures to address these localized negative social impacts. The Trust Deed for the CTF and the Operational Manual for the MGF highlight the need to direct special attention to assuring women farmers fully participate in, and benefit from, the MGF sub-projects.

It is anticipated that the several small-scale infrastructure development and productive investments may entail land acquisition, or affect access to common assets/resources and/or livelihoods of the surrounding communities. Any such land acquisition resulting in involuntary resettlement and/or restrictions of access to resources and livelihoods would be undertaken according to the project's Resettlement Policy Framework. These impacts cannot be fully determined until applications are submitted by investors to the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund for specific sub-projects, and the ESMF includes screening criteria for these types of impacts.

Sub-projects funded through MG are not identified yet. The purpose of the Social Assessment is to assess the situation with regard to VGs and propose measures to ensure that the development process fully respects their dignity, rights, economies, and social issues. Therefore, sub-projects to be financed through MG will be screened, and if VGs are present in the sub-project area, a Vulnerable Groups Plan (VGP) will be prepared under the

supervision of the Local Authorities, and the Fund Manager of the Catalytic Fund, together with the private sector investors. The sub-projects will not be implemented until the VGP has been developed in agreement with the VGs, cleared and disclosed. Therefore, during implementation, a determination will be made if VGs are present. Then, a VGP will be prepared. Table 2 present the activities and indicators for inclusion of VGs.

In general, unless properly designed and executed, the sub-project types explained earlier could have negative impacts on the lives of some VGs whose poverty and isolation and/or way of life could be at odds with some of the project types. According to the land study, which was undertaken as part of the preparation of the SAGCOT, one of the main problems facing the vulnerable groups is land and water use. In addition, the activities/projects which will be promoted under sub-projects under the SAGCOT Investment Project could cause conflict over land and water in the participating communities if not mitigated. Poor and vulnerable groups also could be excluded from the SAGCOT Investment Project benefits due to lack of education and information, skills, access to basic infrastructure, among others. This Framework includes some preliminary mitigation measures, which may be elaborated in the future case specific VGPs.

Sub-projects funded through MG will ensure that any negative impacts on VGPs by the project are mitigated and positive impacts are enhanced based on free, prior, and informed consultation. Once the presence of the VGs within the area of the sub-project funded by MG is determined, a detailed social assessment (SA) will be undertaken by the fund manager (in collaboration with the investor and the farmers) for the preparation of a VGP. Each sub-project will undertake free, prior and informed consultation and the project will establish a grievance redress mechanism to handle any complaints from project-affected people.

The Social Assessment for the VGP will include gender disaggregated information and data. The VGP should ensure that the differentiated gender roles are considered and mitigation measures reflect the voices and views of all VGs.

Given the fragile condition of the VGs -- their limited inclusion in the larger society, lower education and information and access to basic services -- there is a risk that in the process of the development, their rights and access to land and other resources be further pressured. One way of managing and or mitigating this risk is by ensuring informed, prior consultation with the known VGs and taking into consideration their needs and preferences with regards to the project under the MG. The following are key issues to be considered as the SAGCOT Investment Project is being developed:

- Sub-projects in which there are disputes about land would be excluded from the project.
- Most farming communities' relationship to land is different from collective relationship to land use by some communities and this may cause special complexities in dealing with land matters. This should be taken into consideration when defining sub-projects to be financed under the Catalytic Trust Fund.
- SAGCOT Investment Project sub-projects would require skills for appropriating modern agro-business through the supply chains. The project should take cognizance of the low education levels of some of the VGs who do not give education due

importance as well. The issue of lack of formal education among some of the VGs should be considered during the consultation and grievance mechanism as well as for training programs under the SAGCOT Investment Project.

• Related to the above, the SAGCOT Investment Project may enhance agricultural and related skills of the some VGs who have started cultivating. Facilities to assist communities may include improving access to market though improved roads, better extension services, which could assist them to improve their livelihood and participate in entrepreneurial activities while ensuring the preservation of appropriate way of life and choices.

Free Prior and Informed Consultation Leading to Broad Community Support

Tanzania has a longstanding practice of extensive consultation and participation at local levels. This approach is enshrined in legislation, such as the Local Government Act, 1982 which promotes public meetings at the local level and encourages village residents in "undertaking and participating in communal enterprises" and to "participate, by way of partnership or any other way, in economic enterprises with other village councils."⁶

Community Plans are developed by local authorities, following extensive consultations with stakeholders. The local stakeholders decide how the Plans will be implemented and who will be responsible for results. Plans are routinely monitored and updated. Local communities also discuss the beneficiaries of the Plans and who, if any, are being adversely affected, and what measures should be taken to mitigate impacts, including compensatory measures. Local meetings and Minutes of the meetings are public and accessible.

Following this approach, the SAGCOT Investment Project is expected to facilitate smooth communication of all the stakeholders, even if there is an absence of specific guidelines at the local authorities' level. Mitigating this absence is the fact that the SAGCOT Investment Project will work with communities and CSOs to exploit the opportunity on the ground to reach out where some VGs from different groups come together. Natural meeting areas, such as markets, will be strategic points for awareness creation and other SAGCOT Investment Project participatory activities.

The SAGCOT Investment Project will also strive to strengthen institutions and structures for managing the project and for ensuring participation in decision making by all the project stakeholders, including VGs.

The consultation and participation of VGs will be ensured in formulation of the VGP(s) to ensure that it adequately deals with their needs, priorities, and preference. VGs will be provided with relevant project information in local languages and in a manner socially acceptable to them. Separate focus group discussions will be carried out to assess the sub-project impacts and benefits to these groups. Accordingly, the VGP(s) will be prepared in consultation with the beneficiaries. The outcome of the SA and the VGP(s) will be presented in community workshops/meetings.

⁶ Article 142

Consultation and information disclosure will be undertaken to ensure that the needs, priorities and preferences of VGs are adequately reflected in the project. The VGP(s) will promote participation of VGs in and around the sub-project area, and identify VG's needs, priorities, and preferences through participatory approaches. Consultations and participation of VGs, community-based organizations (CBOs), and line agencies will be an integral part of the VGP preparation process.

Based on the sub-project selection criteria, unless there is free, prior and informed consultation leading to broad community support, sub-projects would not: (i) commercially develop socio-economic resources and knowledge of VGs; (ii) displace VGs from traditional or customary land; or (iii) commercially develop natural resources within customary lands under use that would impact livelihoods or the social values of VGs. If VGs agree to be physically and/or economically displaced, there will have to be appropriate mitigation and compensatory measures. Because of the type of sub-projects envisaged under the MG Fund, it is considered unlikely that any such physical or economic displacement will occur.

VGs will be informed and consulted in preparing the VGP. Their participation in planning will enable them to benefit from the sub-projects and protect them from potential adverse impacts. The VGP will be prepared in consultation and in a socially acceptable manner with affected VGs, will be available in local languages before sub-project implementation. In this process the following will be considered:

- (a) Establishing an appropriate gender and inter-generationally inclusive framework that provides opportunities for consultation at each stage of project preparation and implementation among the affected VGs, if any, and other local civil society organizations (CSOs) identified by the affected VGs' communities;
- (b) Using consultation methods⁷ appropriate to the social values of the affected VGs' communities and their local conditions. Special attention will be given to the concerns of women within the VGs, youth, and children and their access to development opportunities and benefits; and
- (c) Providing the affected VGs with all relevant information about the project (including an assessment of potential adverse effects of the project on the affected VG' communities) in a socially appropriate manner at each stage of project preparation and implementation.

Involvement of VGs in problem identification and design of solutions has to be ensured through the entire sub-project cycle interventions.

Benefit-Sharing

The SAGCOT Investment Project aims to provide for profit-based agro-business investments along with improvement of food security. It may also support commercial development of some agricultural or dairy products, some of which are for nutritional and subsistence

⁷Such consultation methods (including using local languages, allowing time for consensus building, and selecting appropriate venues) facilitate the articulation by Vulnerable Groups of their views and preferences.

purposes. The consultation process will help communities including VGs to understand the project objectives and what kind of benefits they may receive from the project, including: land management techniques and skills; training to strengthen existing skills and/or learn new ones; seeds, tools, implements, kits; better management of land and water resources; maintenance of supporting infrastructure for farming, pastoral and other community activities; and, efforts to support complementary employment opportunities. Again, consultations are critical to understand the needs of VGs and ensure that benefits are meaningful to their situation and context.

In determining socially appropriate benefits and conducting consultations, it will be important to take into account differentiation between sub-groups of vulnerable people in a given area in terms of the nature and cause of their vulnerability, their capacities and needs. Thus, a VGP in a given sub-project area may require different approaches to consultation with various sub-groups, ensuring the use of socially appropriate consultation strategies. Similarly, mitigation measures and socially appropriate benefits need to be calibrated to address the specific circumstances of different sub-groups.

Grievance Redress System

The SAGCOT Investment Project includes a Grievance Redress Mechanism for dealing with complaints by project-affected people. It is available to parties who have grievances or are not satisfied with the project's handling of adverse impacts, benefit-sharing, and/or the resettlement and compensation process. These grievances could relate to adverse impacts on communities and/or VGs, the adequacy of consultations, issues related to project benefits, the valuation of assets, amount of compensation paid, level of consultation, non-fulfilment of contracts, and timing of compensation, amongst others.

In order to address grievances, a Grievance Committee will be formed for dealing with any grievances as they arise. The Committee would be established in accordance with the existing laws and policies of Tanzania. It will include a representative of the District lands Department, a representative of the Village Council, a representative of the investor's resettlement team, as well as a representative of the PAPs. It should also include an independent valuer if the grievance is in relation to compensation amounts. The grievance procedure will be simple and will be administered as far as possible by the Grievance Committee at the District and Village level.

As the VGP and/or RAP is being prepared, PAPs and other stakeholders, including VGs, will be informed about how to register grievances or complaints, including specific concerns about compensation and relocation. The PAPs should also be informed about the dispute resolution process, specifically about how the disputes will be resolved in an impartial and timely manner.

All attempts shall be made to settle grievances amicably. The grievance redress mechanism is designed with the objective of solving disputes at the earliest possible time, which will be in the interest of all parties concerned and therefore, it implicitly discourages referring such matters to the national level government authorities or national level courts for resolution.

The Grievance Committee shall maintain records where grievances and complaints, including minutes of discussions, recommendations and resolutions made, will be recorded.

The procedure for handling grievances should be as follows.

1) The affected person should file his grievance in writing, to the Village Leader. The grievance note should be signed and dated by the aggrieved person. Where the affected person is unable to write, he should obtain assistance to write the note and emboss the letter with his/her thumbprint.

2) The Village Leader should notify the Grievance Committee and respond within 14 days during which any meetings and discussions to be held with the aggrieved person should be conducted. If the grievance relates to valuation of assets, an independent valuer should be requested to revalue the assets, and this may necessitate a longer period of time. In this case, the aggrieved person must be notified by the Village Leader that his/her complaint is being considered.

3) If the aggrieved person does not receive a response or is not satisfied with the outcome within the agreed time, s/he may lodge his/her grievance to the District Administration.

4) The Grievance Committee will then attempt to resolve the problem (through dialogue and negotiation) within 14 days of the complaint being lodged. If no agreement is reached at this stage, then the complaint can be taken through the formal court process, ie to the Village Land Council, the Ward Tribunal where relevant, District Tribunal and the High Court (Land Division) at the National level.

The Grievance Committee will produce a Report containing a summary of all grievances and will make this available to the SAGCOT Management Team on a quarterly basis.

Disclosure of the Vulnerable Groups Planning Framework (VGPF)

The VGPF is an annex to the ESMF and SRESA, which have been consulted upon extensively during project preparation. This Framework is being disclosed at the following websites in Tanzania: Prime Minister's Office, Vice President's Office, Ministry of Agriculture, Tanzania Investment Centre, Catalytic Trust Fund, and SAGCOT. The VGPF is also being disclosed at the World Bank's InfoShop.

A summary of possible impacts and associated mitigation measures are provided in Table 1 below.

Table 4: Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures of Possible SAGCOT investment interventions (to be developed on the basis of SA findings)

S/N	Project component		Potential impact(s)	Mitigation measures
		Positive	Negative	
1.	SAGCOT MG to catalyse agribusiness investment in the Southern Corridor in ways that reduce poverty, improve food security and benefit	 (i). The project aims to provide for profit- based agro-business investments along with improvement of food security. 	 (i). Land use pressure on some VGs. (ii). Conflicts over water for irrigation and other water needs in the area. Communities are concerned about lack of adequate livestock, structure including dip tanks, vaccination and 	 (i). VGP(s) will be prepared by the fund manager (in close collaboration with the investor and beneficiary communities) based on the principles of the Social Assessment and respond to the demands of VGs.
	smallholder farmers.	 (ii). The project may support commercial development of some agricultural or dairy products some of which are for nutritional and 	 veterinary centers, permanent watering spots and drinking troughs. (iii). Social differentiation: possibility of the exclusion of the VGs from the sub-project activities and hence benefits, due to their representation or low 	 (ii). Inclusion of the VGs in the identification and preparation of the sub-projects affecting them, and prior, free and informed consultation with them to minimize the adverse impacts (if any) on their lifestyles and livelihood choices.
		subsistence purposes.	education. If not coupled with awareness creation, the cash economy expected from the agro-business might	 (iii). Inform the VGs on how they can benefit from the commercialized products, including strengthening/learning skills for
		 (iii). The project may alleviate bottlenecks manifested as inadequate or substandard infrastructures for small farming and 	 impact on the VGs negatively and expose them to health and other behavioral risks, as well as excluding women from the benefits within these groups. (iv). There is poor definition of secondary right holders in land. These include 	enhanced agricultural production and more effective management of resources (e.g. land and water). Considering relevant infrastructure for pastoralists such as drinking troughs and permanent watering spots could prevent conflict between farmers and pastoralists.
		livestock activities.	women, whose rights are tied to men, informal land occupiers, tenants, refugees and migrants and so on.	(iv). Appropriate grievance mechanisms will be initiated by the project, in accordance with national and regional laws and procedures and consistent with this VGPF and other relevant project safeguard instruments.

S/N	Project component	Potential impact(s)		Mitigation measures
		Positive	Negative	
				 (v). The Project will monitor environmental and social issues including of the VGs for Project-specific investments under the Catalytic Fund.
2.	Strengthening Agribusiness Support Institutions connected to the SAGCOT Programme.	The project aims to strengthen the capacity of agribusiness support institutions to facilitate partnerships between agribusinesses and farmer	As a new type of public-private partnership, coordination among and cooperation among international business, domestic business, Government and DPs might be a challenge, which in turn could affect the VGs negatively.	 (i). Project will invest in strengthening awareness and understanding of broader environmental and social risks, including of the VGs, and strengthens the capacity of a limited number of key stakeholder agencies to mitigate the risks.
				 (ii). The project will seek to nurture strong partnerships between International Businesses, National Businesses, Participating Communities, Development Partners and the Government, ensuring that they are all represented in decision making bodies and observe the SAGCOT Partnership Principles.

4.5 Plan for Social Assessment (SA)

The SRESA and the ESMF have provided information about the VGs in the project area and provide guidance on measures to ensure they are consulted about and included in the project. These studies include information on the social, institutional characteristics, and livelihoods, among others, of the known VGs groups. However, once sub-projects are identified, if VGs are identified within the sub-project area, a more detailed SA study may be prepared to take account of the needs and concerns of the VGs, which is to be the basis for the Vulnerable Groups Plan (VGP), in accordance with this SA

The detailed SA will gather relevant information on demographic data: social and economic situation. This information will be gathered through separate group meetings within the VGs' community, including their leaders, NGOs, CBOs, and affected persons. Discussions will focus on potential positive and negative impacts of the sub-project, measures to enhancing positive impacts, and strategies/options to minimize and/or mitigate negative impacts.

The SA includes the following elements, as needed:

- (a) Gathering of baseline information on the demographic, social, and political characteristics of the affected VGs' communities, the land and territories that they have traditionally owned or customarily used or occupied, and the resources on which they depend.
- (b) Taking the review and baseline information into account, the identification of key sub-project stakeholders, and the elaboration of a socially appropriate process for consulting with the VGs at each stage of sub-project preparation and implementation, as well as considering the limited access of some VGs due to distance, lack of information, etc. In undertaking this review, it will be important to take into account differentiation between sub-groups of vulnerable people in a given area in terms of the nature and cause of their vulnerability, their capacities and needs.
- (c) An assessment, based on free, prior, and informed consultation, with the affected VGs of the potential adverse and positive effects of the sub-project. Critical to the determination of potential adverse impacts is an analysis of the relative vulnerability of, and risks to, the affected VGs, given their distinct circumstances, as well as their lack of access to opportunities relative to other social groups in the communities in which they live.
- (d) The identification and evaluation, based on free, prior, and informed consultation with the affected VGs, of measures necessary to avoid adverse effects, or if such measures are not feasible, the identification of measures to minimize, mitigate, or compensate for such effects, and to ensure that the VGs receive socially appropriate benefits under the sub-project.

Both the social assessment and consultation process, and the preparation of a VGP should be done according to terms of reference approved by the World Bank.

Table 5 below presents activities to be undertaken by the Catalytic Fund Manager and potential recipient of the matching grant.

Table 5: A Step by Step Process for the Fund Manager and the Matching Grant Recipientfor Inclusion of VGs

1. a.	Screening:	i. TORs for a consultant to
b. c.	Identify locations of the VGs in sub-projects sites Whether the VGs (those that may be below the food poverty line, lack access to basic social services, "including those that are geographically isolated, and are not integrated with society at large and its institutions due to physical, social, or cultural factorsare present in the sub-project area Identify vulnerable community stakeholders (committees),	 i. TORS for a consultant to facilitate the sub-project identification and planning stage ii. Consultant identified iii. Consultant hired and contract completed and signed iv. VGs screening checklist v. List and description of all the VGs in the sub-project area vi. List and assessment of the social and environmental issues in the sub-project areas
2. a. b. c.	Social Assessment, if VGs are present Social assessment, if VGs are present positive and adverse effects on the VGs Identification of environmental and social issues affecting VGs and possible impacts Identification of appropriate gender and intergenerational inclusive framework that provides opportunities for consultation	vii. List of safeguard measuresviii. List of sub-projects activities
pan dis a. b.	rticipation of the VGs through focus groups cussions on: Interventions measures and likely impacts and safeguards measures to be incorporated in the sub-projects Whether the VGs broadly support the sub-project	 ii. Documentation of the number of discussions and minutes of the meetings on: Whether the VGs broadly support the project iii. List of spatial and not spatial issues iv. List and description of impacts and safeguards measures to be incorporated in the sub-projects v. Safeguards framework produced List and description of impacts and safeguards measures to be incorporated in the sub-projects
		 Safeguards measures implemented as per the safeguards framework Indicators developed for evaluation of sub-projects impacts Listing of modified tasks to be implemented for improving VGs
	 c. a. b. c. 3. Fr pardise a. b. 	 food poverty line, lack access to basic social services, "including those that are geographically isolated, and are not integrated with society at large and its institutions due to physical, social, or cultural factorsare present in the sub-project area c. Identify vulnerable community stakeholders (committees), 3. Social Assessment of the sub-projects on the VGs b. Identification of appropriate gender and intergenerational inclusive framework that provides opportunities for consultations and participation of the VGs through focus groups discussions on: a. Interventions measures and likely impacts and safeguards measures to be incorporated in the sub-projects b. Whether the VGs broadly support the sub-project

4.6 Institutional Arrangements

The presence of institutional arrangement is the prerequisite for effective use of the Social Assessment and the implementation of the VGP at all levels. Tanzania governance structures

for decision making are vertically structured, with horizontal linkages across various government departments. At the national level, there are various Ministries, followed by Regional Secretariats, while at the District level, administrative roles are executed by the District Commissioner and District Administrative Secretariat. The Local Government level is handled by LGA Directors (Directors for City, Municipal and Town Councils and Executive Director for District Councils). Under the LGA Director, there are several heads of departments who are supporting the Directors (i.e. planners, engineers, community development, water, natural resources, land etc.).

At the community level, the governance is under Village Council/Mtaa, whereby administrative roles are executed by Village/Mtaa Executive Officer.

World Bank funding may be used for specific sub-projects applying for matching grants funding under the SAGCOT Investment Project. The Fund Manager of the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund will oversee the evaluation of the matching grant sub-project. The investor applying for the grant and the Fund Manager are responsible for implementing the project, and all due diligence required during project preparation. The investor will be responsible for addressing safeguards issues, including those related to VGPs, under the guidance of the Fund Manager. The Government of Tanzania, through the office of the Project Coordination Unit, will have ultimate oversight for redressing grievances and mitigating negative impact caused by sub-projects on project-affected groups/marginalized communities.

It should be noted that the Catalytic Trust Fund is a new entity. The administrative structures for environmental and social management are laid out in the Trust Deed, and will be further defined in the operational manual guiding Catalytic Fund operations.

4.7 Preparing and Implementing a Vulnerable Groups Plan (VGP)

Based on the SA, for the sub-project funded by the World Bank, the prospective recipient of matching grant funding will be responsible for consultation with respective VGs in order to develop appropriate mitigation measures and livelihood enhancement activities. This recipient will be technically backed by the Fund Manager of the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund.

The VGP(s) address(es) the: (i) local social organization, social issues, customary land use and tenure, and resource use patterns among the affected VGs; (ii) potential positive and negative impacts on VGs; (iii) measures to avoid, mitigate, or compensate for the adverse project effects; (iv) measures to ensure socially appropriate project benefits will accrue to VGs; (v) measures for grievance redress; (vi) measures to strengthen the capacity of Catalytic Trust Fund to address VGs issues; (vii) the involvement of local authorities, CBOs, CSOs and NGOs with expertise in VGs issues; (viii) budget allocation; and (ix) monitoring and evaluation.

The VGP(s) is/are prepared in a flexible and pragmatic manner, and its level of detail varies depending on the specific project and the nature of effects, both positive and negative, to be addressed. The VGP(s) would include the following elements, as needed:

• A summary of the social assessment.

- A summary of results of the free, prior, and informed consultation with the affected VGs that was carried out during sub-project project preparation and that led to broad community support for the sub-project.
- A framework for ensuring free, prior, and informed consultation with the affected VGs during sub-project implementation.
- A grievance redress mechanism. This should include accessible procedures appropriate to the sub-project to address grievances by the affected VGs arising from sub-project implementation. When designing the grievance procedures, the potential investor and Fund Manager of the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund should take into account the availability of judicial recourse and customary dispute settlement mechanisms among the VGs.
- An action plan of measures to ensure that the VGs receive social and economic benefits that are socially appropriate.
- When potential adverse effects on VGs are identified, an appropriate action plan which includes measures to avoid, minimize, mitigate, or compensate for these adverse effects.
- The cost estimates and financing plan for the VGP(s).
- Mechanisms and benchmarks appropriate to the sub-project for monitoring, evaluating, and reporting on the implementation of the VGP. The monitoring and evaluation mechanisms should include arrangements for the free, prior, and informed consultation with the affected VGs' communities.

4.8 Monitoring Arrangements

Participatory Monitoring and Evaluation (PM&E) will be used to monitor implementation of VGPs. The investors are responsible for this under the supervision and guidance of the Fund Manager of the SAGCOT Catalytic Fund and ultimately the PCU. The process will involve the Fund Manager, the prospective investor, representatives of affected VGs, NGOs, and CBOs.

Implementation of participatory impact monitoring at Catalytic Fund (CF) level will assist to maximize socially appropriate benefits and will provide space for the VGs to voice their concerns. In addition, there shall be 2 levels of reporting – one generic, where impacts on VGs can be cited in the quarterly technical progress report of the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund; and one specific, where the grant recipient must periodically report progress in implementing the VGP(s). The reports will be submitted to both the Fund Manager of the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund and the Project Coordination Unit for review and consolidation.

The Fund Manager of the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund will be responsible for determining if any follow up actions are necessary, and for ensuring any necessary actions are taken regarding the implementation of VGPs. The Fund Manager together with the investors and PCU will ensure compliance during the of implementation of VGP(s), which as noted above

will be closely monitored to provide the Fund Manager with an effective basis for assessing the VGP's progress and identifying potential difficulties and problem areas.

Monitoring will involve the following tasks:

- i) Administrative monitoring to ensure that implementation is on schedule and problems are dealt with on a timely basis;
- Socio-economic monitoring during and after VGP implementation, utilizing the baseline information established by the socio-economic survey of VGs undertaken during sub-project preparation to ensure that impacts on VGs are mitigated and benefits reach VGs; and
- iii) Overall monitoring.

Data from the social assessment undertaken during the sub-project preparation stage will provide the benchmark for the monitoring process to assess the progress of the VGP. The monitoring process will also include the following:

- i) Communication to and recording reactions of VGs;
- ii) Information from VGs on impacts and benefits received;
- iii) Usage of a grievance redress mechanism; and
- iv) Disbursement of compensation amounts and delivery of assistance.

The indicators for achievement of objectives under the VGPs are:

- i) Input indicators human and financial resources used
- ii) Process indicators project activities, such as training events, extension visits, etc.
- iii) Output indicators results in terms of numbers of affected VGs, assistance provided, benefits gained, etc.; and
- iv) Results-based indicators VGP objectives and outcomes are achieved.

4.9 Disclosure arrangements for VGP(s) to be prepared drawing on the Social Assessment

The final draft of the VGP(s) will be submitted by Fund Manager of the SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund to the Project Coordination Unit in the Office of the Prime Minister for onward submission to the World Bank for review and clearance. Once cleared, it will be disclosed incountry, in the appropriate form and manner. Later on, the information from the documents specified above (particularly the VGP) will be made available to affected persons as leaflets in a manner that is understandable to them. VGPs submitted to the Bank for review and clearance will be posted in-country at the project and other government websites, as well as at the Bank's Infoshop.

4.10 Budget

Implementation of the VGP shall entail the following activities which will require financial allocations: (i) capacity building of SAGCOT Catalytic Trust Fund staff who will work with

the investor to ensure the VGPs are prepared and implemented (ii) the cost of preparation of a VGP by hiring a consultant; and (iii) the cost of the implementation of the VGP. All costs required to implement the VGP will be incorporated in the relevant VGP sub-project budget, which should include detailed cost estimates. The cost is borne by the Catalytic Trust Fund.

REFERENCES

- Project Appraisal Document (PAD) for Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT) Investment Project; February 2016
- Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT): Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF); August 2013
- Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT) Investment Project: Strategic Regional Environmental and Social Assessment (SRESA); December 2013
- Southern Agricultural Growth Corridor of Tanzania (SAGCOT) Investment Project: Integrated Pest Management Plan (IPMP); March 2014

ANNEXES Annex 1: Stakeholders Consulted in Bagamoyo and Lindi Districts

			FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MA	NONI		
S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundil Taasisi/ Organization	Mahall / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Salni
	24/d2011	ANDREA G. CHEZ	NE LINDI DE	LINDI	6767 090164	Colob
	-du -	HARONI. I. KHARA		LINDI	0784680267	Tembar
-	- Qu ·	RASHIDI-O. NAM		LINDI	0784675537	2 Churchele
	-0-	COSMAS MINANS		LIMDI	078236412	6 -mg
1	27/5/2016	TABLE GAID	MYE PAMASASIN MEEE LINDE	c finter	0782245414	Fall
			BAK-ANDS LINDI P-T	LINDI	0764158613	Jul
-	- 1-	SALUM OMARY		LINDI	065639497	e Ant
1	20/05/2010	HALIMA SHASANI		BAGAMOTO	0655-023775	年
-	o funni	JOSEPH R LASOM	20 20 20 20 PL	BARAMOYO	0713-432.455	talia

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MAONI

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundl/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
4	26 ISI2016	SHAFINA ULIMUENTO	UPENISO	ZINGHTUA	5782168663	5. ULIMISENGU
2	-11-	RUKA A. MAIDIMA	UPETIDO	ZINGTIN		R. A. MOIDIMA
3	-u-	тиклита манганае	LIPENDO	ZINGATIA	Anna Contra	M. Nantanje
4	-11-	ZAINABU LIZAMAGA	LIPEHILO	ZINGATIA		Z.H. filonge
5	-11-	MAUA .m. 2.1.0468	UPEHIDO	ZUNGATUA	0785 5732.98	MACINA
6	-n	SomoE - H LITENGU	UPENDO	ZINGAFINA		S-H. LITENGU
7	-n	MUMARREUS, HASON	UPENDO	ZINGATIA		MILTENGU
8	-11-	TITLE & MATTIN	+LRENIGO	ZINGRETIA	6986116794	Thatra
		SESILIA D MROPE	TUPEND ANG	NAMUNDA	0689480485	S DALLON
		SOMOE, A. KULEHU	TUPENDANE	NAMUNDA	0722-200-200	struchu.
		FATILIMA H. BROAMLAN	TUPENDANE	NAMUNIBA	07844398 32	FH'B
		MARIA 21 Marmon	TUPEON BASE	NAMUNIA	0683056314	m. A MARAMBA
	1	MUSALANDOOMRA	TUPENDAME	Adminal	078474 84 89	M. 0 155A

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KUUNDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jinal Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
		Munines KAPWA	MUNDAGOTO A (MUNDASHATI)	KIWALALO	0782922523	Maping «.
		1017	n	25	0686376500	
		SAINI ISSA	11	15	1685546828	SMEL
-	the second se	SHIDI ANGHARIKA	Mongeo Mayay	Kiwasasa		E Rubett
		Munumuskurer Issa	n	- 11		10.1
		Runan Hussour	11	n		EH
		Eistin Husseld	n	n		R.H.C
	The second se	HADING KIILAGO	w	n		H.K.
1.	Doleh u	REGINAMARIAMI	TUPENDANE	Principal Gaussia		RMAnhuri
	168 13 12010	BAKARI DSHAR		• 1		alfundos
Í.		Amora MALOMBA		0		A.N.
		COHA MUDA NGU	2005	9		parguli

			FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA M	AONI		in the second
N	Tarehe IDate	Jina/ Name	Kikundl/ Tassisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature ISaini
	1 arene juan		NGUNN KAZ GURA	MADINGWA	0712 646316	Atl:
-		HILATEN ALATENSAS KILL	NGUN KAZI GROUP	MATIMBWA	CALC- 64 8332	Althuma!
-		TENGA MUNGHUGU PASIA	all here General	MATIMBLUA	0655 22105G	Sur.
-		Mi altown EDI. S. Maniku	in here Giller	MA THUBBAR	17-15-95-9175	Mand
-		THUR MASAW		muzzakiti	07634199	
-		HALIMA JOMU	GITEBENES	MTONI MAKURHNEE		
-		FOTUNO MEATA	GREGEMEE	U	0676104509	
-		HABIGA ASDALLAN		1/		Ockdala
-		JOSEPH P. LASMA	CDO- KIWANAWA	K. WANGUA	0713-432455	1
-		Musques S. MA		KINANANGERAN	071-6979514	
-		LISNE M.CHOMI		KINAHGILIKA	0469 19 2966	
-	-	MUCANAMAWA MEIK	and the second sec	KIWANCIWA		
1	-	PILL SELEMAN		MBULENIE	0685-32814	4 Albuara
-		WILLIAM M. MABOJA	JIAMINI	MBWEWE	0986.910753	11
-		ALEX ELLY	JIAMUNT	MBWENE	0674-8891	中与四十

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMW HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
SIN	rarene ibace			MBWEWE	the antital	Tums
		Musfyunia Mollamed	JEAMINT	TURMENE	VV23300100	1.1.1

			FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MA	AONI		
5N	Tarohe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi' Taasisi' Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
	Relosion	DAGING M. CHUWA	GAH DISTRICT COUNCIL	BAHI	09-675267574	Donne
2.	- du -	SUZANGI NUSH	BAHT DISTRICT OUNCEL	Barti	0754848392	Bour.
3	-de-	JOSEPH. O. KILES	BALL DUTENT COUNCIL	BAH	03 69 20-5009	Telar.
+	25/05/2016	LUCILLA MOLLEL	AFISH UGANI KATA	BAHI	0787343034	Michellep.
Ε.	28 05 2016	STEVEN GOUSE	BATH DISTRICT COUNCIL	Bath	0682.000 661	_ the
6	28/5/2016	MIONY MASENGO	KATIRU KOKUNAD AMAN	BANI	076350115	mazong5.
7	28156016	ELIONA S KIRA	MUSEANERCH SUKUMA WIKI	BAM	0783-325662	Fine
3		MAONI Charles	KATIBU HIJAPINA	BAH	0762128546	Heliales
1.	2012016		MJUMBE 11 11	BACK	55	Heydob
D -	2815-12016	DENUS Hough	BAHE DISTRICT COUNSEL	BAH	0754-966648	ABALQ, an
1.	28/5/266	ANTELWISTE JENTS	TANZANIA YOUTH INVESTIMENTI LUG	89.41	0714 577393	APor 1
1	-11-	NIVARD MTENELO	4 6 6 4	BAHI	0754-309109	Miteries
2	-11 -	BACK GINON	MPENSO GROUP	BIHWA -BAHA	2768-510300	thes'
4	-11-	CHARLES TOROLA	- 11 -	_11 _ 11	0755281476	Atsroke

Annex 2: Stakeholders Consulted in Bahi District

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

	_		FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA M	AONI		
SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundii Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
1	28/5/2016	JENIPHER M. KIGODA	WEO	ILINDI	0654-530964	Hippoh.
2	28/05/2016	PETER L'MSILILI	Mkiti-UMaTA/16inda	14 WBI	0653771176	Ron.
3.	28/05/2016	ADATHORY CRYAKOAKA	MIKITIS/KIJJI JLIDS/	1LIND,	0757716355	Rethrally
4	】图 052014	ANTHONY SAHALI	Ahsa Uha NI	(LIND)	0756314203	Allemander
5	89/05/2016	SoleRY. S. PEMDO	MWTKIN WARNAARKIA	JLIMAI	0766278241	Jun D
6	1. 61		Mud: HINDI SEKONDAR	THINDI	0762265250	PR-KL
9	28/05/2016	PEUBEN M' CHAIBUT	Mhun with Church	10mal SC	07/9331739	Rechint
8	11 24	ELIZADETILF, MLUL	MBOSMMBOSA	ILINDI		Embulu
9	FAM	Enji mpali	1,1	() (-	E. MPa
10	14 11	ELIZABETH FIMBAL	SOKO LIMUUNE	ILINDA	0763709381	#Epali .
11	3.1	JOSTA KOGADSI	17 7.7	121 1087	0694842261	Fame

ŴŇ	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahall / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
Ì	26/5/016	AGATIMA MILA-LULA	TWIME TUBITE	IBUMILA	0756861252	Almeding
		SAUGTHY LISTOR	TWIME TUBLIE	Buncha	0756532545	0.
		JESHARINA LANAM		X1		J. Kabago
		Ebour Mitema			0758050033	Empleana
		BETH AVIALA	11	N	0755894884	B. mula
		DOMINICA MONTE	XV.	- 11	0166322700	BY MOENDE-
		LULUA NYOCHOYUM	4.4	N	6756352505	L' mjanegringue
		HUSTINA UGGI	11	- <u>u</u>	075354 8988	Y.1995
		MANLING RETACTIONS	N.	N		in meneginywa
		-LULATHA NGIMBA	AC.			-1 Hymba
		JONISIA NHOMBELLE	NI NI	11		Jonyembelle
		Lulua MBusico	ù	11		L mburlo
		RIZILI NYENGINYE		ti		hirch
		ISAYA Milemile	1.1	34	0756062312	Blelomk
_						

Annex 3: Stakeholders Consulted in Iringa District

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature (Saini
01.	26/05/2016	BARBELIMA MATONIA	MTOTO SALAMA	KIDIDA CIAA LHEN	0768352389	B. Matorya
17	26/05/2016		MISTS SALAMA	KIJIJICHWE LARAS	0756764631	D- Uibasa
2639		PATRISIA MOOVELA	MIDIO SALAMA	KIJIJI CHA INETA	0769209435	P. MOOVELA
07	Zbloglagh	STURIDA MALATA	MTOTO SALAMA	WITITI CHA INCH	0757350302	S. MALATA
35	er	6115054 LUTAMAS	MIDI SALAMA	KIJIJI HIGM	075676208	C. LUTAME
56	2015/2016	Omma meturca	MIDIO SALAMA	. IHEMI	0754313075	Ompuka
57		MELLY CHAMAD	MTOTO SALAMA	KUTH INEM	0769937950	Bhando
18		AGNES MERLALIFA	MIDTO SALAMA	KUTTI INEMI		A.N.
9	26 5 2016	LINA CHENQULA	MITOTO SALAMA.	KISISI (Hemr	075493002	6 CHENGIN
10	26 drave	MOMIKA KISOSO	MITOTO SALANON	KISIJI IHEMI	075715,5272	millisasa .
11	26/5 2011	JOYCEA NYAGAWA	MTOTO SALAMA	KUTI - HEM	0756864503	Hyagawa
u	~615 2011	A TO ACE-N. NRUCHINA	MIDIO SPEAMA	NUIST AINE M	V736864503	CA WYUU WI

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MAONI	

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
1	26/5/01	ADISLAW Kotom	MATERA YOUTH	Kiwele	\$75 6923562	RAJeme
2	16/5/016	NASIBU HARIBU	MAISHA YOU THE AGRICULTURE	Rivele	687.8341998	Alles
3	26/5/2016	BONITACE MENGON	Y MAISHA Yoce THE AGRICUL		0787476661	Moneny
4	2.4/5/2016	LAZACK RIBUGA	MATCHA YOUTH STRICULTURAL	Karche	CE 06 5791162	L. Kibuga
5	26/5/2016	EZERNA A. SATULO	BWANA SHAMBA	KIWERE	0762173920	-80
6	2615/2016	Abdall J. Tave	KATIBU WA SILOM	Kiwete	0756548400	
					WAISHA YO	UTH ABRICUL TURAL TO MAPINOUZHRRIGATIC P. O. BOX 108 IRINGA

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jinal Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
1	26/05/2516	Pudenciana 11 salca	linga Rural (DED)	Innqa	026 270 2585	+ totamin

_			FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA M	AONI		-
S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundl/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
1.	26/5/2616	DR Kitamb A	KDC - KILOMBER	Hakara	0786 3093	44 - A 6
2.	20/5/2010	CHARLES GHALI	KDC - KILOMBERG	IFAKARA	0717233637	- A.
3	-11-	DUMAS CAMPI	KOC- KNOMBERO	FALARA	0987 104894	Harr
4		POTRICE MASSAW	KAC-KNOWSERS	1 FOICORD	07849115912	drum
5.	_ n	Neema M. Miren	do KAC- Wilomber	IFAUARA	0715531112	Dhi
6.	-11-	Sabestian Kalle	Kbe - Kilombero	IFARANA		Carla
7		ELIA LIMOTA	BADAUA FADAMERS GADUP	The attraction of the	0712-825669 0784-090065	Eternon
8	-!	JAMES MOVETA	BARAKA FARMERS GROW		0682341566	mygge
9		FARMER WILLIAM LYAUPE		IFALLARA	0486229352	So Italaler
	27/5/2014	MODISTUS YOTAM	KLUSAVIKA	ISBTE.	0713775026	
0.0	-11 -	DAVIAI MAUMER		IDETE	0386911733	A. manual
	-11-	A GUSTINA MCANA	KIWAVIKAI	INGTE	068785337	A MGATA
	-11-	STELLA PILLSI	KIWAWIKAI	IDETE		Stella.
	11	EWARDY-G-KITALY	DIWANI WA LATA	KATA LOETTE	0785 210 457	Euro
		SELEMAN NYOWRA	TUMAINI VIJANA KISTEESS	KISBGBSE	075054053	Damla

Annex 4: Stakeholders Consulted in Kilombero District

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
_	27/08/2016	SR. MATILDA ROMORDA	Si Elizabeli - Mburger	MBINGU	0769-242091	Sr. maby-
_	27/2/2016	SR. ANATOLIA MENDIKE	St. Elizabeth - mbingu	mBinday	078214283	Ar
_	1.1	JUSEPHIWA LIVILINA	Chance the womenting Vigiers	Manan	0766189255	Tiuliza.
_		ABBALLAH MIOPA	1 KNITHMBI VED	1 Knithongs 1	0786-047024	and
_	1		Ikammer majkin	1Kornway	07-872339386	Tat sun
_		MI CHAFL CHAMBA	LO MOFU - NVARD	Mar	0784-797276	Shirly
		Jos Hun-G. Kymbo	CHEMA CHA WARCUMA	Stateman Gon Gar		Halamicho:
_	-11-	FATUMA, A. NGODYAMI	CHAMA CHA KIAKULIMA	SAGAMAGANGA		
		SEIF A MAGOMBANA	Movanico VIJANA HAI	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	0657057817	# amp
	-1-	FAUDHIA LYOKA	MURMER VIJENH HAN	BLUBEREGE	0716-651362	F LYOKA
	-1-	RASHIDY LUMETA	MWAMIK UDANA HAI	KIBEREGE	0717-219410	Adueta.
		FESTO & MWEHA	UHURU GROUP	KIBEREGE	0657597063	male
_	-1'-	ANDROW M TIMUL	UHUR U GIROUP	K. BEREGE	0683318832	A18021
_	~!`~	AMIDA - KASSANGA	VAUAU GROUP	KIBEREGE	071865346	A. KASAMORA
		MRASH JUMBE		SONTO	063826480	

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMUI HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Salni
	29.05.2016	BAHAT.E.GAMENTOP	TUMAIN	KISEBESE	065217-70670	Sp.
	-0-	NINOLAUSSY ALIM	LA. TUMAINI LUSEGOOD	KISEGGSE	0714956656	Bergal
			TURAKINI	KISEGESE	0655-26834	Millearia
		ZAINA HANAMECK	MHENDA	GISERESE	0676565AVB	2. myenda
	-1-	SOPHIA MWANDAM	NEVERAN TUNNATEN	KISEGESE	0675289498	Abanho.
-		and the second sec	VIJANA TLOMAN	KISEGESE	0687799171	
-		HELGNA NGOLOTHA		MBINGU	078402342	4 H. Ngo bat
	-	PRICKA M. KATAMA		MIBINGU		p. Kalaribi
1	- 4	GILBERT MASIN		MBINGY	0782 3540	79 Duesilo
1		TOYCE K-LOUECHO		MBINGU	0688891017	J. KYONECHO
1		EMANUEL	MAPAMBANO	MBINGU	06827195	90. E.J. My
	~11-	JOWADO				-
1	- 11 -	TOSEPH KALKESVE	Upporto Formates Garp	1Gima	D7.8905897	5 FlSyc-
-		Maris John	- di -	1GIMA	0782053619	and the second s
-	-1-	TIMOTH MINAKIALU		IGIMA	0752683934	5pm

FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MAONI

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundli Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
-	29.05.2016	AMINA S.KILNDAL	a, ^เ ปลุโลสอ	MULLABOK PAN)	0788932521	Finderal'
	-1'-	Annual Limicela	MAJONIE	millionuGrani	1	Amina
		ANGULA MKELET	WAZEC	MARENTO		ANGELA
-	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	SALIMA AMANZ	MALEMARU	กาแสละเดืองพ		CARIMA
-	-11-	HARUMI MGONDAUTA	MAZEE	MIWANGANI	0787354411	HADDON 2a.
-	~~ ~	NÖWEMBE TULU	WAZGE	MINANGAN		tulu
	~~~	HALIDA KUMB	KINNINDKI	KIDATU	0786-362092	Huber
_	- 11 ~	AGNES KAMQUN	4 4 -	KIDATU	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Hangung
	~~~	FRIDA M HICOIB	a me	KIDATU	0682.52018	
_			2			2
-						
-						
_						
	-					

SIN	Tarehe IDate	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu! Phone	Signature (Saini
1	28 staci6	EEda Neluvambo	Favaje Group	Ulunda - Kipzelo	0767018791	tada bo
1	25/05/2016	VISIA & CHAPLE	CDO- KIPAGALO	KIJULA	0765638353	agrilo
•	25/042016	BARIKI KYANDO	BARDKA COMOP	ITOKA	0758379599	BKYANDO
	33/05/2016	Alpustini: NENLILA	BARAMA GREOUP	TOKA	675276541	A Newsy
	astatio	HERI SHIGHA	HERI SAL GROUP	IYOKA	0769039156	H. Smithers
1	28 65 2016	METHOR K-IMA	BARAKA	HOKA	07 58 205736	the man los
	28/05/2016	HUKRANI SAWA	manus	1-1-1-1-1-3	07,269277	dun.
	1 1	ARCTINGGO LUIANAN		WENGULG	075946745	BA
	28/05/206		TUSHTIAMANE GROUP	VENGULL	0762028702	16
	28/05/2014	STANILLEY NSEAMER	TUSHIKAMANE GROOLP	UTENLIKE	0458580873	Alaman
	3/05/2016	IJRAEL MANNE	AMMUNI GROUP	KILANTI	0765259105	Tunsal
	28/5/2016	APOLO G. MISOLAZA	AMAN. GROUP	KILANOJI	0759983097	
	1 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 -	AND ANDERT MESSOLA	HEARD KANNANDI	KILANDI	075 666590	Hed VACLANIN

Annex 5: Stakeholders Consulted in Makete District

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMUI HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
	25/05/2011	EDWINI KYANDO	UMBIA GROUP	KITULA	0)59903444	
	22/05/2016	EAIRA KYANDO	UMOJA GROUP	KIULA		ASU.
		JEWITH SALIGA	umoja Grall	KITULA	0764870434	1.88
		TAUTA K-TANDO	UMOJO GROUP	KITUCA	0752819750	T. Egando.
		(HERLAN SILAAH	Umoja GROUP	KITUMA	07-65 764637	C. SILach
		K. Sacing	BUPENDO 'A'	KITULA	073503505	KSanger
		TWELVE NOOTE	UPENDO A.	KITULA	0426775861	
		D.SWINDR KVANDO		Kituha	046404252	
		GBONG-ZELYKAM		KITULA	0765573660	
		PADANIH. KIANDO	CPGNDO . A	KITUZA	675916852	
			3	HARACAN STRAT	D D	ENDELED VA
				PANA MACHA KIDAOM	ab inbaby h	Contraction of the second s
			10	ang de sh	a	
				Sec.		

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahail / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
•	28/5/2016	ANNA S. MWAJELA	Afisa MAENDELEO JAMII KATA	IWAWA	0759-527154	Mageka.
2	25/5/2016	BETARCE S. HAMBO	DIWANI VITI MARLUM	LUPALILO	6762 235341	BERGANDO
1.			KATIBU - ULALAN	IWANAA	0762627852	T. Ugme
			MUSAMOKITI-ULANAH	IWAWA	07-64396768	E. NSHULL
5	25/15/201	GEUR SAYER	MJUMBE - UWADAN	INAWA	09536069	15-Songq
		MARY KIANDO		wawa	0764513042	micyondo
			No. and A	LUMINA		A Songa

MADNI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA
KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MAONI

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
1.	27/05/2016	FRANGS E. NAMANA	DO MAKETE DC (SED	MAKETE	078782149	M Glow.
2	Field	FELIX MIRWELO	A98680.	- da	0763715805	Setunel
2	28/05/2014	ANNA G. YESAYA	MAKETE DC-CDEDI	MAKETE	0766863567	Desaya

Annex 6: Stakeholders Consulted in Mbarali District

			FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA M	AONI		
SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
	22/57 2016	EREMAN MAHINTA	DED - MBARALI	MBARALI	0759444450	Julla
_		ANY4 BATHE SEME	Ag DCDD	MBARALI	075408187	mul
3.	100 B 306 6 10 10 20 2	ANINO E Muiram	Director Kinwania	MBARALI	076334206	2 Auguns
4	11	MOSES HA NCHIME	PROGRAM MANAGER - KINGA	TA MBORALI	6752-029691	M
5	27/5/2016	GREGE MUMBURE	ANDHANA HEARN AND			
			LEVELOPMENT INTIATIVE	(THOIS M BARAN	0766897745	abbinabertos
6	27/5/2016	GASTON MWAMBAND	ILE VIJANA	- 22	6745 58941	5 Atto

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Namo	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature (Saini
1	27/05/16	MOSE H. NCHIME	KIWWAUSA	RIVENA-HEBRAL	0752029094	-HK-

			FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MA	ONI		
s/N	Tarehe/Date	Jina/Name	Kikundi/Taasisi/organization	Mahali/Location	Simu/Phone	Signature/Saini
1	30/05/2016	KENWY S. SHILLINGA	MPANDA DC	MPANIDA	0755311204	Silah
2	30 05/2016	FABIAN (CASHINISTE	MPANDA DC	MRANDA	0756695715	Binto
3.	30 105 hard	BANKII Murman	MIMON DC	MAMOH	0753141857	Musich
y.	Boloppa	EMERICA. M. KUYLOR	mpanda NC	MPANDA	0785191372	Am Rof
Ś	30/5/2016	JOHA REMANI	WIKUNAN CHA UGIRANI MWEMA	MESAULA_ MPANDA		J. Rehani
6	30/5/2016	VELENA MATHIAS	KINCUNDICHA UTIRANI MWEM	MASALILAMAN		Manathias
7-	5 4 S & C & C &	A CONTRACTOR OF	KIKONDI CHA USIRANI MWEMA	MAJALILA-MERKO		A. Saidi
8.	30/05/2016	HADIZA J KAKOSO	KIKUNDI CHA UJARNHI MWEEMA	MAJALILA -MPA	0692532747	H juma
9	16.1.56125200	JOICE KUSONOWA	u u u	a 1)	1000	Jusi
10	3015 /2016	ESTA SUL	KIKUNDI CHO USIRAM RWG	No MARTINE	0684735012	G. Sudi
4	30/05/2016	CREDINA MODESTI	<u>n 11 h</u>	MAJAHA		C. modesti
12	30/05/2016	AMIGA ANDREA	11 11 11	11 11		A.Andrea
13	30/05/2016	MARIAM KUMBAO	11 11 11	11 11	0684188023	M. Kumbao
	30/05/2016	ABDAUGH June	1. M Kiti IFUKUNU/A.	18minisa	07-88355844	2 Eglatet
	30105201	DOTTO J' EAHAB	11 CD (D/MPMANDA)	FUELTWA	0607660961	-Att
-	30 05 2010	JOHN H MRISH	WEO - SIBWERR	SIBUDA	0629556193	Allan
	30/shoi6	MATILDA SOVON	500	51 BWEGA	0629595436	Alloni

Annex 7: Stakeholders Consulted in Mpanda District

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA XUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

5/N	Tarehe/Date	Jina/Name	Kikundi/Taasisi/organization	Mahali/Location	Simu/Phone	Signature/Saini
1.	30 05 2016	Julitha Gregory	Tuyikomboe Mumbe	Sibwesa		Gr.
2,		AMASTANINA K-SARIN	Tujkonest Mjume	SIBMESQ		Blagandu
3	30/5/016	Robert Januaruel	Tyjikamboe Ketther.	Sibnes 2	0629596009	Remond
4.	30/5/016	NOELIB POLINO	TUDIKOMBOE MWENYEKI	SIGWESD	-	Nº POLINO
5	30/016	LUCA CHARLES	TUJIKOMBOE MWENTER	SIBWERA	0628463480	as
6	3015/016		JUJIKOMBOE MIREIBU	SIBWESA	0157819313	Formulas
Ŧ	30/5/2016	A GINES MAGLINGH		SIBWESA	-	A masung
Z		PAUL W MITTANION	TUSIKOMBOE (MIMbe)	LABURESA	0628361394	
9	30/5/2010	Minan Gorian	TYLLOMROE (MJumbe)	HOWEIN		m Katan
10	301512016	Lucy which	Tynkomber Chyumbe	Sibusca	-	Lunham
11		ESIG Iginasi	Tuikomboe(mjumbe	SILLOUSA	-	E.Iginas
12			TUTIKOMBOFMENTUNBE		0628569692	Bethy
13.	30/5-/20	BENARD-C.	AMANI CANUMBE	SIBWESA-	062959603	8. BENAR
14	30/5/2016	JOSEPH JILAS	a AMANI SE	SIRWER		Thulug
15	3-15/2116	DEUS (BENDWCHUGH	A ALVANI MIHASIBU	SIBNEERMALA	0603436673	Asugata
16	BI lastanie	KNOADA BRUEST	KATAUI DEVETORMENT FOUNDATION (MA	MARNDA	0745676840	K-BRAZIT
17	31105 246	CHARLES SIGHTLIMA	KATAVI DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION	MPANDA	0724677598	Home

Annex 8: St	takeholders	Consulted	in Songea	District
-------------	-------------	-----------	-----------	----------

NR	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundil Taasisil Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
	26/05/2018	GODFREY CHIPMUND	KA STANGED DC	SONGEA	0758702757	filliquelle
1	16/03/2016	MARCO N MPANGALA	-du-	-ds	0753019144	Ample
	1	LEONDAD MAKING	Somet	Pe	75389698	A
- 4	1 .1 .	GIRESIANN NOTING	multonio K/TIBU	MPANDAMGoude	0757723757	Gintang
5 1	and the second se	JOHN MUSCLA	MIKITI MUMBONIO	MPANDANGINE		5 Mkoela
-		Q J	Minempe Mungame	A ALLE	0756766906	Z.M3CONAR
			MILIMBE MULINGARD	A	076947498	O. Komba
P	26.512016 Kasta	Kastansia milanzi	MUMBE Muungania	10 10 M		K. Mlanzi
	26.5-2016	PHILOTEO MHADAWA	WEOLKNIBU MAPRIAND GROUP	MPANDANIGNISO	0756876526	Filmy
	27 105/2016	WERNER A NOME A	KILUMBA ASSOCIATION	MG ASINI-SONNEA	068275 9041.	All Come
2 1	271572016	MARINA D. MOILING	WIND AMEDS	WINOLLIONDO.	0753635635	That
3	27/05/2016	KASSIAN D. MWAND	NINO DEVELOPMENT ABSOCIAT	WING/LILONDO	6758 318 149	K'D' Noedo
4	27/5/24	LEONATUS LO MMILE	WING AMCas M/KITI	WINO/LLOND	0764274955	Altretes.

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMUI HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature (Saini
17	28-5-2016	Teresia Libordes	wajane nahali pa kazilida	e) songea	0755-47 8491	Thomas
18	28-5-2016	ELES WIDA THOMAS CHAN	E MHASIBY -PEDIPA	SONGEA-PERANUHO	0764798870	asauuu
19	28-2-2016	PIUS SUPENDERI KAYOMBO	MKITI - PENIPA	SONGEA - PERANUHO	0766252353	R.P. Vayal
20	28-5-2016	MALEMBE- LUDDOR	MAPOSENI SACROS	SONGER PERMUT	0768449526	bola
21	-11-	METHOLD NGERER	-MKURUGENZI	SontheoReacon	100 075377	

Annex 9: Stakeholders Consulted in Singida District

514	ON YA WADAU P	UHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA	MARUMY, MAQUMU HATARISHI KATIKA U KUCHI MWA TANZANA (SAGO FOHU YA WADAU WALIOYOA M	01)	AMU YA KUENDELEZA I	KILIMO UKANDA WA
S/N	Taroire /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Tassisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
T	26.05-2016	SIMON R. MUMBER	MKURGATNA HIW SINGISA	SINGIBA HQ	6767405182 -	ASI'
2	26.05.2016	ABEL S. MNGALE	SAICO HOW SINGADA	SINGING &C	0758 921572	Astali.
34	2165/2016 2×/5/2016		COO H/W SINGIDA H/WILLAYD -SINGIDA	SINGADA DC. TLONGERC	0784939542	
100	and the second second		111	1LONGERO	0753 557522	for any op
6	Contraction of the second second	SR. MARTI R. KUNE		- 11	0763174068	Silver .
7	1 1	SR. FELISTA . KULNE	/// C	1LONHER.	-	Adua
8.	2715/2016	NOLES SIMA	KITUO CHA WALAMANY		0757657188	vising
9	27/5/2016	AMMA THHALA	KITUO CHA WALSMANN		07-82-303689	Nilagoz
m	2715 A016	MAPUR FRANSES	KITUD CHA WALERINY	0	68-62-30-78-87	Mantianis .
n		Chausiku Juma	Wa VV y	1LONGERO	07655525 60	C-J-Bisija
12	h	TATU ISMAILI DUN	WALL	ILONGERO	0765 632a ag	Tillunen -
13	11	ASUMINI IBROMM			0769367594	в.т.
M	11	MARIA FRANCISIM	MIKITI - WAVIN	KONGERO	15762307843	Monderacies

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMUI HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MAONI							
SIN	Tarche /Date	Jinal Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini	
	27/5/2016	CHELFILDA ULAYO	CDO -MIINKO	MTINKO	0743007517		
		TUNA R. NJIKM	AFISA TABAFA	MINKO	0764642200	2 Anjahr	
dF IT	ariston	DOMINIC VISING		MTINKO	0752652841	1700	
1 1.	27151296		Mul Kit	MINKO	0762-494222	B. HAMIOSI	
	-11-	ZENA MUKIANJA	MHASIBLI	MILINKO	0788263596	Z-Mwaja.	
	_11 _	EVA JUNA	NIKA	MILHKO	07659396	REHGIODU	
	-11 -	SARA CHARLEST	KATION	MIINKO	0766610013	Bablan	
-	- 11-	HABAN RESTUDA		NITINKO	6763169645	Dator	
-	-11-	JAFARI MUSSA	MADILIEU	MALOLO	0957709043	Full 9	
	-11-		WALEMAUL CHANNE	UGHANAI	0765407571	Barrow	
-	-11-	JOYCE & MEWAL	and the second se	UGHANDI	0752 576328	Juburala	
-	-71-	MWANINA J. KITIKU		2)	-	MEJ. K. TIKU	
	->1-	PETRONILA JOHN	CDO USHANDI	=12 -	0758260610	Bar .	

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUNU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

SIN	Tarehe (Dato	Jinal Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
1	27/05/2016	EDWARD Y. VULI	VED	SENGNIEMARA	0783643550	stepli
		SHABAMI M. KIRYUUSI	M/UMONADI CHAURADONAD	10	0784575936	Atterbuild
3	27/3-2et	ALLY LINGULA	KATIBU WAKIKUNG TAMUTA	6 11	0752405526	Ame
4	27/3/2516		MIKIN TAMU TAM		0787903584	ABindi
		RAJABU RI SAIDI		N 1 111	0786221442	Refaird

Annex 10: Stakeholders Consulted in Sumbawanga District

				80230		
S/N	Tarehe /Date	Jinaí Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
1	27/shok	RICHARS QUMUNI	FARASA UNIT	MSHAMI	0766853665	R: Sumun
2	27152016	MAGRETH JUMA	JUMAINI HA UPENDO	MPUL A	0756405610	mound
3	22/5/12016	JON KABRIGWA	TIPS MO-10 WASHINGDA	ILEMBO	0759982776	J. KARMANA
4	27/5/06	Jorce L. N20m	watermarky	Miper of	0755921129	J. NZOWA
5	27/5/06	ANA JOHN	AdMINEATU OFOMBATIC	ILEMBO	0787131180	HHOL +A
6	27/6/016	HEKIMA KAPURI	TUINUANE	MIETEZI	0756030309	Hikanusi
ŀ	27/5/226	GROJAFREY MALLIPER	TUINUANE	MREPERI	0767027096	5. marikes
5	21/3/00	Deliki marika	Turnoance	materia	0 52474 5782	D marikes
7	27/5/2016	ORESTI MAGANA	WALEMAUU	Mpul A	0756435701	O. Magange
ø	27/5/216	MAKSI KAPUTA	WALEAUAVU	MPUL A		M. Karuta
1	27/5/2016	TEOFRIDA TENGANAMA	TUMAINI NA MAPENDO	MPUL A	0765889426	Aarganambe
	2115/2016	Rosemary CHANDWALL	Funcali No Marcallo	Meu A	0756175027	R. chanddata
3	SUSSES	and the second state of the second state	ZI MEDOLAMENARA	MPIN B	0752131243	Wa.
		REPARTS NERNERLY	NGUUU KAZI	MULLIMA	0753770150	Brimanne
5		BEKARA NGALANSA	NEW TOAZ	MEIMA	0952550363	Hankur?

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

SIN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature /Saini
1	27/15/2016	VGLONICA MYOUELA	MCHAKAMCHAKA GROP	MPUL	0788552547	Dempovela
2	23/5/2016	EVELINA CHALULA	NICHAKAMCHAKA GROP	MPUI		Eachalula
3	27/5/200	BRANDINA SADAL	meltakamettaka	MPOI		B. Sadala
4	27/512d6	Vebatamailes	mahabamahaka	MPUL	0-1846823	o V malko
5			mchakamchaka	MPD,		S. mungabort
6			mchakamchaka	NCPUI		E. BURAMBO
7	27-15/2016	ALBINIA LUCTONE	- KUFARIJVAALA	MPUI	0754553755	Augel
8	2715/24	JOYSE KAPITAO	JAULISE	ILEMBO	0745534766	J. RADITAO
9	3-154016	AGAINETA APWSHA	JIPEMO YO	ILEMBO	Statuces and	G. ALUSHA
10	27151206	KATARINA KANJA	TIPEMOYO	ILEMBO	0744172505	K. KANJA
14	87-5-20H	ANNA A- MAENO	TUMUANG MIGIEZ	MIEICO	OFLUSSPICE	Areabe
12	22-5-2015	MARIYA KUDICIGA	ia Titulise	ILEMBO		m kuppigwa
		27.2 X2 11 A	I KIKUNDI COA WALEWAVU	MPM	0764214893	Embrantia.
ite	27-5-20	6 Domisiawa Kawa	TITULO TO	ILEMBO	07534993	D D-KALINGA
15		ROS. 5. SINDANI		MIETELI	076438249	Budi

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA	
KUSINI MWA TANZANA (SAGCOT) .	

SiN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Namo	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simu/ Phone	Signature /Saini
1.	00/5/16	ADAW A. MUSAN	DISTAL OT SXECUTI VE DIRECT	Sunlange	07 52423646	the-
2	27/5/246	Joseph G Milliugh	District Council-Sumburga	sumbawaga	0754848991	3-y
	27 (05/2/15	HENRY. I. HANdle	TOWN EXCLUTE OFFICER	2 LASLA	076 8863691	Hall - lays
4	27-15)2016	CLEMENT & JONE	(BIWANI)	LAULA	0762026758	Imm
5	2715/214	METTERS - NEMER	ULE 0	LARCA	0764653664	winde
1	27/5/2016	GRACE O'MSNEILI	TUSUANE	LAELA	0769835338	Aspa
7	2715/2016	KISA MWASAMBU	TUJUANA	POSTA LAELA	OTESUSE	Remarke
	Contraction of the second	Kungues DAUDI	(00)	LAELA	0753049795	koudi
9	27/5/201	SINDAVIA KAEGULA	TUTUANO	POSTALARU	07692062	so Statute
10	27/5/2016	BASLISAMMANZUNI	AMANI	KASAKALAWE		6 mwananzumi.
11		EMANUELKALA	KUMEKUCHA	KALAMBAZITE	075602950	7 C.Katupali
		PALE				
12	29/5/2016	NICAS C. KAROLO	WED	KALAMBAZIDO	\$768874725	Rt.
		EMMONUEL EDMOC	LICHIDE	SUMEAWANGA		#
		BOAZ TWEVE	TUWAWAYY-ILEMBA	ELEMBA	0759821066	the

FOMU YA WADAU WALIOTOA MAONI

MAONI YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMU/ HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA PROGRAMU YA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

SiN	Tarehe /Date	Jina/ Name	Kikundi/ Taasisi/ Organization	Mahali / Location	Simul Phone	Signature (Saini
1	27/05/2014	HERON MWAKATON	MAN SACCOS LTD	MRU	075367663	ATTOPORO
2		JESEPH JOHN	RAKIMO HARWARD /NGUVU KAT	MKIMA	076948957	Jue
3	27/09206	LILIAM MARSALA	MPUL SACCOS LTD	MPUI		L. massala
4	27/05/2016	MOSES H- FUNDASHAMURA	MIKIMA KIKUMOI/NUUVU KAZI	MICIALA	0768537063	NT STATE PI
5	37 105 2016	ENER.C.STA.E. MONA	MRULINAMES CHA WANG	MRAD	0766194398	E.E. MOLL
6	27 05/2016	RETISIA MENILWA	MPUI SACCOS LID	MPUI		R. mkwilw
7	27/05/206	A VETA NUER CHARGANENSE	NGUVU KAZI	MRIMA	0764549427	Phonisenery's
8	27/05/2010	RICHARD CHARUPEWA	MKIMA NGUVU KAZI	MISIMA	0742204562	Richakupewa
9.	27/05/2016	CASESNOA . PASMPE	Minimo Nour Kan	MKINW	075355005	maristino
10	\$310shold	TALASIRA CHOLE	ILEMBO NTIFEMOTO	115ABO	0769529249	. The ettal E
11	27-5-201	PAULINA MEDARA	MPHI- TUMAINI	MPAL	0751550341	Antoenstelo
12	In	MALISTELA NAMA	MPHI TUMBIOU	MPHI		MNaudi
3		JUNIAMAMAN	> >1 >1	25	1	mikerta
14	27/05/2016	FERRICK LYELA	MPHI - WARES	-11-	0756649786	Sylla
13	27/05/00	RECESLED & GARLING	Mauri Enzi (mana)	Mikima	074425 9009	Gallician

16	27/05/2016	JOSEPH CHALTA	WINNANE MUETEZI	MIETEZI	0465246500	Ferlya
17 18 19 80	27-05-2016 27-05-2016 27-5-2016 27-5-2016 21/5/2016	STELLE MELENINA KAULULE HELEMINA KAULULE YOZEPHA MOSA CHOLO MALPESA	TUMBINI ILEMBO TUMBINI ILEMBO TUMBINI NO ORANGO MIUI TUIDORRE MICIEZI	ILEMBO ILEMBO MANI MIETEZI		S. mpalenonito H. KAULULE Y. MOKQ
	28/5/2016	Aloyce Multimetor	Kizanu	muza	0769961075	Wai
	13	ENOUS BLOWERD	11	71	0265-173143	
	11	Mariany. Cooperies	11 11	14	675 3072389.	Affress
	11	ALFRED S. MWEMBE		MUZE	0756712015	Atwends:
		HAPPYMACK MWANAWAN	a -1-	31	0764564973	Atoma
	11	GAUDIOZA NOELY ALBERT MIKUMA	MSANNU	MUZE	0746357016	nodi
		LEONARD E MEOSU	a magne a contra	Muze	0755533664	AS Ba
	Canal	A Country & And A	MAULUARU	Muze	076466\$24	Berning

Annex 11: Participants of Consultative Stakeholders Meeting in Dar es Salaam



SERIKALI YA JAMUHURI YA MUUNGANI WA TANZANIA OFISI YA WAZIRI MKUU



WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMIHATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

> > FOMU YA MAHUDHURIO/ ATTENDANCE REGISTRATION FORM

SIN	Jina/ Namo	Cheo/ Position	TaasisV Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
-	CRIDA NICHOLANS	CDO - KILOMBERO	KLOMBERO DC	0713654277	Ridoles
		SWD- KILONBERD	KILOWBERD DC	6715531112	Den
	FABLAN KASHIND		MPANDA DC	C7-54495118	HETTUR
	JOHA REHAN	MPANDA	MPANER DC	0782896774	TRehani
	MRASH JUMBE	MKULIMA	KILOMBERO	0 65836663	Bhase
	Halipa Kumen		KILOMBERO	0186-363093	Hunter
	ERIMANCELLUNCLUM		SUMBAUANDA ()	076421585	Frank
	LUCIA MTATIGUTYWA	The second s	IRITIGA	0758332305	anyangunyus
1	Christina Marca	CDO - SINGIDA	SINGDA De	0743007313	-
_	Barney Loseko	PC - PMO	Pmo	0754272540	BIL



SERIKALI YA JAMUHURI YA MUUNGANI WA TANZANIA OFISI YA WAZIRI MKUU



WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMWATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

S/N	Jina/ Name	Cheo/ Position	Taasisi/ Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
	Nichoel Rieson	RD Development	CARE Tanzania	6675556906	15D
-	Joseph Millings	DUOD	Sunbawange Dimit Com		A.F.
	Stern GARAGY		RAK-MOS LINDI	068621499	is And
	MAGENET I. LLASUNGA		-	0629596009	Hang
		KATIBU WA KIKAMUI	-	0629596032	Bronde"
	Payelioge Sus	Prestard	MIC-Doly	0714009792	AR-
-	Va t	KATION WA KIKUNG	*	068571792	Her.
		CORDINATOR	BAK-AIDS LINDY	0782245414	For
	DAMMA Myun	16/2 5/ 16/25	MIDID SALAMA	0754318075	Onjuke
	-NUSTA SANGA	Store interesting	WENDO A.	0756200107	- Saplas





WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUM/HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMEI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

> > FOMU YA MAHUDHURIO/ ATTENDANCE REGISTRATION FORM

S/N	Jina/ Name	Cheo/ Position	Taasisi/ Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
1	Main Baklon	Sr. Social Dev. Specialist	Wald Bank		23
		Sr Auricultur Specialist		0756 440110	ff
	Linda Fubile	Farmer		D75290000	
	Arita Muchikilime	Rostam express	SUMPESU	952-46918	-sk-fe-
	John	1		0752-46917	Arte
	John Banga	Env. d Social Spenishet	SAGCOT	obstballsio	Ø.
	Stohano Maari		MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE	0752099247	Magan
	Elizibeth Ngasa	000	Iringe DC	6955626267	Alle
	Betie luvuae	CO-JECG	ÎFCG	p754419766	Bang
		AGRIGROGRAMME MOR	EUROPEAN UNION	099943852	CAP ?



SERIKALI YA JAMUHURI YA MUUNGANI WA TANZANIA OFISI YA WAZIRI MKUU



WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMIHATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

S/N	Jina/ Name	Cheol Position	Taasisi/ Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
1	CASTER ALLANDANDILE	KA 11231	VIIGNULI WA VISANA	0745529415	Knie
1-	TOHN T. MBAND	m/uti	UWAVI U	5762,941420	Qluball
	Empril & MALLINE		LANGAJI	07-56029807	3 Ralupak
4	Kassian Mwend	Meneja	WIND DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES	0758318149	K.D. Musida
5	Annabot le Sano	Marg yo Mgendelia Ga	Halmadauti (2) Mbarali	0754081847	DEU.
6	AIRPAGIEVEIM	MUSHACKIN	NALGORIA	075731089	proc
7-	CUTHBERT MUNNY	A.A	MKALAMA DC	0755680126	Gowa.
8	JOHN March	MIGTI	NUUNGANO	0769002JAX	J. Mkakht
9	SUSIPE & MOYO	CDO-BARAMOYO	BAGAMOTO DC	5767880303	itigent 1
10	the Nasib	Mjumbe	PMO	0784 42187 9	VARSect





WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMHATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

FOMU YA MAHUDHURIO/ ATTENDANCE REGISTRATION FORM

S/N	Jina/ Name	Chec/ Position	Taasisil Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
1	COSMAS MWANT	MADCOO	LINDI DC	07.82364126	mya
2	JOSEPH P. LASOTA	040	BARAMOYO DC	0713-432455	tan
-	ABELS MINGAK	E DATCO	SINGUAA DC	0758921172	APOrle.
6	MOJES NCHIMB		KIWWMUTA-MEARALI	0752-02962	AR .
5	1 ECCARDIA LESSELE	P. CORDINIATION	THEI	0759 449998	Mar.
6	FORTUNATA MERA	babo	MAKETE SC	076864226	thesho
7	SOPHIA MYUANDAM		TFAKARA	0675289498	Auculano
8	JOSEPHINH LIVEIN		Mannero	0766189252	2 Finika
9.	ESSAU NUMMIA	and the second s	BEAMLEHIGH CENTRE	0969-18-13-49	AB I
	SIDONIA KALU		TUTUANE	0769206	200 Sleus



SERIKALI YA JAMUHURI YA MUUNGANI WA TANZANIA OFISI YA WAZIRI MKUU



WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMIHATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

S/N	Jina/ Name	Cheo/ Position	Taasisi/ Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
1	NONIC MUNERE	PRICERT-S COORDINATED	CEELS	0756306380	ates
	and the second se	SECRETARY Kison	Kustomas	0769966075	ADi
		MULENHEKITI	UMAMABA	0685-378144	Plazano
	SEBASTIAN KARLE		KILOMBERG	0784-512468	
	MOHA MED MARCUNA	VATIBU		0714400042	
1	JESTINA MSIGUA	KATIBU	MANDIA WAWANDAWARG WADADB	0764109682	Moisur
14	TATU S. MARIA	MULEZESTAGI	MNDLELA - LINDI	6786116794	Inagia
	VEREMUNI MENSE	MIKITINAZEG		0756518316	18th prode
	BONIFACE MENS'ANYI	MRITI WA KINGHON	MAISHA YOUTH AGRICULTURAL GROUP	and the second se	-Arizan 9
	Angela	GIR	Prio	914747863	Allan





WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUM/HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

> > FOMU YA MAHUDHURIO/ ATTENDANCE REGISTRATION FORM

SIN	Jina/ Name	Cheol Position	Taasisil Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
1.	ENWARD MASHIM	AN MWAKINSHA WAHABABE	MIKALAMA DC	0758267336	CanMaen
2.	the second s	ha -	BAN- MDS	0782922523	Maping.
3		A STATE OF	wayane songer DC	5155478471	Theretz
4		BWANA SHAMBA	KASA YA KIWERE	0752173920	de-
1.42	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	A ARISA LASHIRINA	HW Gongea	073019144	Apple
		AFISA MAHUSIANO	ONE ACRE FUND-IRINGA	0763047637	1060mg
7	Emanuel Ear		o Acrea	A-10 3+334	ad.
8	Rahel Graniel	Membership officier	TCCIA	0713040704	fre-
9	MIDRO O. KISO	m FREGLER KAR	CIUVU KAZI MATIMBUS	OPREHIDI	6 HAT -
10	Mwayaw bi N	Assisted Director Plan	Nice Presidents Office	0655 41998	-



SERIKALI YA JAMUHURI YA MUUNGANI WA TANZANIA OFISI YA WAZIRI MKUU



WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMHATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

S/N	Jina/ Name	Cheo/ Position	Taasisi/ Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
1.	HABIBA ADDAL	· KATIBU ·	JITEGEMEE	0658021877	Dekadala
2.	G. LIRDARA	050	stat crank	935648062	ana
3	JUNIA KAYONKO	MSHAVRI-PMG	PMO	0754-616700	TATIONS
b	MWANLAD KUAZ	DURELTOR RM -TFJ	TES	078458780 5	WS1-3'
5	Dr. Zena Mabajo		1500	0655312225	Berl
K	Perpeture thug.	Mehum Mehry	MARF	0694922194	€\$h
1	Antury Sand	Afia Wanny	UNIMO	075231420	ALL.
2	and the second	Mleiti sa Kikundi		065377117	FAX0
9	ABTWINLIG . HUNSHIS		Pmo	0655520536	they
10	JAIMON MBAGA	AO	MALF	0915104333	fin





WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMHATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

> > FOMU YA MAHUDHURIO/ ATTENDANCE REGISTRATION FORM

SIN	Jina/ Name	Cheol Position	Taasisi/ Organization	Simul Phone	Saini /Signature
1.	Joma R. Nik	Afisa Tatala	Aalmeshavri ya Sripide	276469200	Angite
2.	MARIAMY PAULO	KANBY WA KINGWON	7 <u>1</u> 2	036900 4018	minio
3.	EVA Syma	Wilk workingwood	14	0742420012	E-1000 Der
4	RAJABU R' SAIDI		114 161	0786221472	RKa'L-
Ċ,	Christian ulaxo	AFILD MORNOFLED YA JOHN	-11-	0743007313	進
6	Dani Nic Freizig	arranibu world Vison	Halmodouringo Stil Worldv	8m 0752652891	AB1/
7	ELIA LIMOTA	MK	BARAKA	0712,825669	Eliman
8	PHUS Kaypuloo	M.K.	PEDIPA	0766252353	PPKayphebo
					0



SERIKALI YA JAMUHURI YA MUUNGANI WA TANZANIA OFISI YA WAZIRI MKUU



WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUMIHATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

> UKUMBI WA PIUS MSEKWA THEATRE, SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016

S/N	Jina/ Name	Cheo/ Position	Taasisi/ Organization	Simu/ Phone	Saini /Signature
	HUSSEIN S. KILLZA	Matturn	WIZARA JA MALMSIL (UTALA	0782/0676-158343	BANA Str
	CLARENCE CHITEM	TIVENTOD SPECIALIST	WORLD VISION	0754638745	ohit
-	MICHAEL MORA	DEREVA	WIZARA YA MALVASILI NA UTALIJOF		perka
	STANFORD MITENGA		TES MART HQ	0717 574940	/ranka
	DANIEZ Munariant	E DEREVA SALLOT	SARIOS	975-\$63453	(they i
	Shot wast	Ve of	fract,	077350094	St.
	KATERS TIBBIN		TSN	0715283763	Fride
	DR. Deogratias Live:		fuldada	075427399	
	Gerald Nuckiperil	and the second se	NATIONAL LAND 145 PLANNING COMMING	0755219689	(Alluge





WARSHA YA WADAU KUHUSU MPANGO WA KULINDA MAKUNDI MAALUM/HATARISHI KATIKA UTEKELEZAJI WA MRADI WA KUENDELEZA KILIMO UKANDA WA KUSINI MWA TANZANIA (SAGCOT)

UKUMBI WA SHULE YA SHERIA (LAW SCHOOL OF TANZANIA), DAR ES SALAAM ALHAMIS, JUNI 2, 2016 <u>RATIBA YA WARSHA</u>

MUDA	SHUGHULI	MHUSIKA		
08:30 - 09:00	KUWASILI NA KUJIANDIKISHA	SEKRETARIET		
09:00-09:15	UTAMBULISHO	SEKRETARIET		
09:15-09:30	UCHAGUZI WA VIONGOZI WA WARSHA	MSHAURI WA MRADI		
09:30 - 09:45	HOTUBA YA UFUNGUZI	KATIBU MKUU-OFISI YA WAZIRI MKUU		
09:45 – 10:00	TAARIFA FUPI KUHUSU MRADI WA	MSHAURI WA MRADI		
	SAGCOT			
10:00 - 10:30	CHAI			
10:30 -10:50	CASE STUDY PRESENTATION	Mtinko, SINGIDA		
	INAZOKABILI VIKUNDI HATARISHI KATIKA EN			
11:50 – 12:20	1. MAJADILIANO KATIKA VIKUNDI	VIKUNDI		
12:20 – 12:50	2. KUWASILISHA CHANGAMOTO	MWENYEKITI WA WARSHA		
	ZA KILA KIKUNDI/ KILA KIKUNDI			
	KUPANGALIA KWA			
	KIPAUMBELE			
12:500 - 13:30	3. KUWASILISHA KAZI ZA VIKUNDI	MWENYEKITI WA WARSHA		
	NA KUTOA VIPAUMBELE			
13:30-14:30	CHAKULA CHA MCHANA			
	MAPENDEKEZO YA UFUMBUZI WA CHANG	АМОТО		
14:30 – 15:30	1. MAJADILIANO KATIKA VIKUNDI	KILA KIKUNDI		
15:30-15:45	2. KUWASILISHA MAPENDEKEZO	MWENYEKITI WA WARSHA		
	YA KILA KIKUNDI/ KILA			
	KIKUNDI KUPANGALIA KWA			
	KIPAUMBELE			
15:45-16:00	15:45-16:00 KAHAWA/CHAI			
16:00-16:30	MAONI YA ASASI ZA UMA NA SEKTA	ASASI ZILIZO ALIKWA		
	BINAFSI KUHUSU MAPENDEKEZO YA			
	WADAU			
16:30-17:00	TAMKO LA SERIKALI KUHUSU	SERIKALI YA JAMHURI YA MUUNGANO		
	MAPENDEKEZO YA WADAU	WA TANZANIA		
17:00-17:10	KUFUNGA WARSHA NA KUONDOKA	WOTE		

Annex 13: Consultative Stakeholders Meeting Photo Gallery



Partcipants registaration



Presentations



Group Discussion Sessions during the Stakeholders Meeting

Page 57 of 63

Annex 14: Income Generating Activities done by VGs



PART A: Key information

- 1. Name (s) of vulnerable groups (VGs) in the area:
- 2. Total number of VGs in the area:
- 3. Percentage of VG population in the area:
- 4. Number of VG households to be affected by the sub-project:

PART B: Details of Sub-project

S/No	KEY CONCERNS	YES	No	REMARKS
1.	ARE THERE PHYSICAL, SOCIO-ECONOMIC GROUPS IN THE SUB- PROJECT AREA WHO MAY BE CONSIDERED AS VGS?			
2.	ARE SUCH GROUPS EXCLUDED FROM THE LARGER COMMUNITY OR SOCIETY DUE TO PHYSICAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS?			
3.	HAVE SUCH GROUPS BEEN SOCIALLY AND ECONOMICALLY MARGINALIZED, DISEMPOWERED AND/OR EXCLUDED?			
4.	WILL THE SUB-PROJECT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY BENEFIT OR TARGET VGS?			
5.	WILL THE SUB-PROJECT AFFECT THE LIVELIHOOD SYSTEMS OF VGS? E.G. FOOD PRODUCTION SYSTEM, NATURAL RESOURCES MANAGEMENT, EMPLOYMENT STATUS			
6.	WILL THE SUB-PROJECT BE IN AN AREA OCCUPIED, OWNED OR USED BY VGS?			

Annex 16: National Policies Relevant to the SAGCOT Investment Project

Policies	Details
Constitution	Section 8(1) The United Republic of Tanzania is a country that follows principles of democracy and community rights and 8(1)(a) The principal aim of the government will be developing the citizens. The constitution under section 9 states that the government and all its organs are responsible to direct their policies and all its activities to ensure that(a) humanity and all other human rights are respected and valued (b)Government activities are carried out in a way that ensures that the wealth of the nation is developed, preserved and used for the benefit of all the citizens and to prevent exploitation of one individual by another (c) human respect is preserved and maintained on the basis of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights (d) the government and all its public Institutions give equal opportunity to all citizens women and men irrespective of colour, ethnic origin, religion or person's status (e)the priority on use of the wealth of the nation should be on the development of the people and especially should be directed towards efforts to eradicate poverty, ignorance and disease. Section 11-(3) states that the government will strive to ensure that all the people get equal opportunity and sufficient to enable them pursue education and technical training at all levels of schools and other colleges of learning.
Resource Policies	
National Land Policy	The National Land Policy (1995) provided that a dual system of tenure which recognizes both customary and statutory right of occupancy as being equal in the law be established. The policy further establishes that the land has value, and that land rights and interests of citizens owning land shall not be taken without due process of law and with full, fair and prompt compensation once land is acquired. According to the policy, administration of village land is vested in the village councils which have to consent before any alienation of village land is affected. In case of land allocations village council shall report to respective village assemblies. The overall aim of this policy is to promote and ensure a secure land tenure system to encourage the optimal use of land resources and facilitate broad-based social and economic development without upsetting or endangering the ecological balance of the environment. The major theme convention of land into an economic asset to which all citizens should have equal access, especially in response to the vulnerability of smallholders and livestock keepers who do not produce a surplus. To minimize conflicts between the farmers and livestock keepers, the policy requires the villages to develop land use plans whereby land for agriculture and livestock keepers. Land use plans also would ensure proper land management and conservation.
National Environmental Policy of 1997	Seeks to improve conditions of degraded areas including rural and urban settlements in order that all Tanzanians may live in safe and healthful productive and aesthetically pleasant surroundings, raise the awareness and understanding of the essential linkages between environment and development and to promote individual and community participation in environmental action and to ensure sustainability, security and equitable use of resources meeting the basic needs of present and future generations without degrading the environment or risking health or safety. The policy thus has a two pronged focus i.e. satisfaction of basic needs and protecting the environment in the course of development. Resources channelling shall be targeted to address poverty related environmental problems. Strategic attention shall be directed towards eradicating communicable disease, guaranteeing food, shelter, safe water for all, sustainable energy supply as well as employment and income generation in rural and urban areas, particularly combat poverty. In its introduction, the national Environmental Policy stipulates that lives of all Tanzanians are intimately connected to environment such that people's survival and those of future generations depends on the harmonious relationship with natural elements. Such a measure means that people have to strive to manage the environment and its resources in ways that enhance potential growth as well as

Policies	Details
	opportunity for sustainable development of current and future generations. Furthermore, it is highly illuminated that there is an ostensible case-and-effect relationship between poverty and environmental degradation whereby environmental degradation leads to widespread poverty and it is equally true that poverty is a habitual cause of environmental degradation because it undermines
The National Forestry Policy, 1999	The Forest Act (2002) recognizes six different kinds of forest tenure categories. National forest reserves are gazetted forests owned and managed by the central government through the FBD in the MNRT for conservation and productive purposes. Local authority forest reserves (LAFRs) are gazetted forests managed at the level of district councils under local governments as production and protection forests. Village land forest reserves (VLFRs) are a new category of forests, which became legalized with passage of the 2002 Forest Act. VLFRs, as the name suggests, occur on village land and, as such, are managed by the village council on behalf of village residents. They are managed for both production and protection purposes, depending
	on their location, size, and composition. Community forest reserves (CFRs) are found on village land and are similar in all respects to VLFRs, apart from the fact that their management is delegated by the village council to a group of persons within the community (such as a women's group or a group of charcoal producers). Private forests (PFs) are those forests owned by individuals or companies that have acquired land title deeds from the government. They may occur on general or village land. General lands, formerly known as public forest lands, are non-gazetted or non-reserved lands and are managed by the commissioner of lands on behalf of the president. These areas constitute the bulk of forests, a total of 20.5 million hectares, or 57 present of all forest land in Tanzania. They are "open access" areas, characterized by insecure land tenure, shifting cultivation, and widespread unregulated harvesting for fuel wood, poles, and timber.
	The Forest Policy and the Forest Act both provide a strong foundation and legal basis for community involvement in forest management.
National Water Policy	Overall the water policy together with the on-going sector reform stipulates the following: (i) Water is considered as a basic need; (ii) Government policy on water aims at achieving equitable access to and adequate sustainable supply of clean safe water both in rural and urban areas; (iii) The policy goal is to ensure universal access to clean safe water supply within a distance of 400 meters from people's home; (iv) Water development and supply is a liberalized as work i.e. all potential actors e.g. communities, private sector, NGOs etc. (Local and foreign are allowed and encouraged to engage (especially by way of investing) to supplement Government efforts in the development and delivery of water supply services; (v) Government will make efforts to promote active participation of the private sector and beneficiaries in service delivery in order to improve efficiency, effectiveness and enhance sustainability of the services.
The Wildlife Policy of Tanzania	The policy under section 3.14 provided that the role of the public is to support the government efforts in conservation, management, development and sustainable utilization of wildlife and wetland resources. Local communities living on land with viable populations of wildlife have a role of protecting and benefiting from wildlife and wetland resources by setting aside wildlife conservation areas on their land. As regards benefit sharing, the government will ensure equitable distribution of costs and benefits that considers stakeholders roles in relation to categories of land and efforts invested by the institution in conservation.
Social Policies	
Community Development Policy, 1996	The main objective of the Community Development Policy is to enable Tanzanians as individuals or in their families or in groups/associations to contribute more to the government initiatives of promoting efforts on self-reliance and therefore bring about development at all levels.

Policies	Details
Cultural Heritage Policy,	The policy recognizes that as long as the public is the main custodian of cultural
2008	resources, its implementation is on public involvement. Currently, the government's
	role is to create conducive environment, coordinate as well as supervise policy
	implementation. The government envisages that policy implementation would
	enhance sustainable conservation of cultural heritage; create public awareness,
	confidence as well as national pride; and expand investment opportunities in the
	cultural heritage tourism sector.
National Human	The overall objective of the policy is to promote human settlements that are
Settlement Policy, 2000	sustainable and facilitation the provision of adequate and affordable land to all
	income groups in Tanzania. The objectives of the policy among others include,
	making serviced land available to for shelter and human settlements to all sections
	of the community including women, youth, elderly, disabled and disadvantaged,
	facilitate creation of employment opportunities and eradication of poverty, too assist
	the poor acquire decent shelter, to revamp the rural economy by facilitating the
	promotion of integrated programmes that include infrastructure development in
	partnership with rural communities, to collaborate with NGOs, CBOs in
	strengthening education campaigns aimed at combating social beliefs that inhibit
	development.